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Director
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ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

100 NORTH FIFTEENTH AVENUE 1 SUITE 401
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85007

(602) 542-1500

January 14, 2013

The Honorable Janice K. Brewer,

Governor of the State of Arizona;

Members of the Legidature;

Rebecca White Berch, Chief Justice of the Supreme Court;
and Citizens and Taxpayers of the State of Arizona

Ladies and Gentlemen:

It is our pleasure to transmit to you the Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of Arizona for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. Responsihility for the accuracy of data, as well as the completeness and fairness of presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the State's management. The data presented in this report, to the best of our knowledge and belief, is accuratein
all material respects and is reported in a manner which fairly presents the financial position and results of operations of the major and
non-major funds of the State. All disclosures needed for the reader to gain a reasonable understanding of the State's financial activities
have been included.

U.S. generaly accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provides a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The State’'s MD&A can be found
immediately following the Independent Auditors Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The State is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the State
are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adeguate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statementsin conformity with U.S. GAAP. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. In
the opinion of management, the State'sinternal controls are adequate to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

In compliance with State statute, an annual financial audit of the State Entity is completed each year by the State of Arizona, Office of
the Auditor General in conjunction with other audit firms. Their audit was conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Their report on the basic financial statements has been included in the financial section of
this report. In addition, ARS 841-1279.03 requires at least a biennial single audit by the Office of the Auditor General. The Single
Audit will beissued as a separate report at a later date.



ARIZONA

The State of Arizona was admitted to the Union as the 48" state in 1912. Arizona is the sixth largest state, with 113,909 square
miles. Arizonais known for the Grand Canyon, one of the Seven Wonders of the World, and its cacti and other desert landscape. A
number of national forests, four national parks, eighteen national monuments, and over 20 million acres of Native American
reservations and tribal communities are located in Arizona.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The State has three branches of government: Executive, Legidative, and Judicial. The Executive branch is headed by a Governor
elected for a four-year term. Arizona's Legidative branch is bicameral, consisting of a thirty-member Senate and a sixty-member
House of Representatives. Legidators are dected for two-year terms. The Judicial branch consists of the Arizona Supreme Court,
Court of Appeals (with two divisions), superior courts, justice of the peace courts, and municipal courts. The superior courts, justice of
the peace courts, and municipal courts are excluded from the State’ s reporting entity. The Supreme Court is the highest court in the
State and is comprised of five justices. Article 6, Section 5 of the Arizona State Constitution describes the types of cases and matters
handled by the Supreme Court.

The services provided by the State are administered through various agencies, departments, boards, commissions, councils,
administrations, offices, and ingtitutions of higher learning. These servicesinclude: (1) General Government, (2) Health and Welfare,
(3) Inspection and Regulation, (4) Education, (5) Protection and Safety, (6) Transportation, and (7) Natural Resources.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying CAFR includes all funds of the State of Arizona (primary government), as well as its component units. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance, part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data from these
units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are shown separately to emphasi ze that
they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position and results of operations from those
of the primary government. Discretely presented component units prepared in accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements. Discretely presented
component units prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board are presented as separate financial statements
immediately following the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are prepared in accordance with accounting
standards other than those promulgated by the GASB.

The criteria for inclusion in the reporting entity and presentation are defined by the Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, issued by the GASB, (Section 2100). Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial Statements explains which
component units areincluded in the Financial Reporting Entity of the State.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Budgetary control is maintained through legidative appropriation and the Executive branch allotment process. The Governor is
required to submit an annual budget to the Legidature. The budget islegally required to be adopted through passage of appropriation
bills by the Legidature and approval by the Governor. The appropriated funds are controlled by the Executive branch through an
allotment process. This process generally allocates the appropriation into quarterly alotments by legal appropriation level. The State
also maintains an encumbrance accounting system to further enhance budgetary control. Encumbered amounts generally lapse as of
the end of the fiscal year, with the exception of capital outlay and other continuing appropriations. These appropriations and their
encumbrances continue from year to year. The State's budgetary policies are explained in detail in the Required Supplementary
Information.



GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Graph 1 summarizes the General Fund revenues and expenditures for the last five fiscal years. This graph does not include transfer
amounts relating to other fund types and other financing sources (uses), which affect the ending fund balance.

Graph 1
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures

for last 5 fiscal years
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The General Fund ended the June 30, 2012 fiscal year with atotal fund balance deficit of $79.7 million. This compares to the previous
year’stotal fund balance deficit of $703.2 million.

Graph 2 summarizes the General Fund Balance (Deficit) for the last five fiscal years:

Graph 2
General Fund Balance (Deficit) for last 5 fiscal years
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The following economic summary is based on the Arizona Department of Administration 3 Employment Forecast Update, released on
November 1, 2012.

Overview

The Office of Employment and Population Statistics within the Arizona Department of Administration is forecasting a gradual
increase in nonfarm employment in Arizona for the 2012-2013 projections time period. In comparison to the employment forecast
released earlier in May, nonfarm employment growth has been forecast to be dightly greater in both 2012 and 2013. An over-the-year
gain of 51,200 nonfarm jobs was estimated for 2012 and 60,900 is projected for 2013. The previous forecast in May was for a 47,000
job gain in 2012 and 55,800 in 2013. In the current forecast, the rate of growth projected for total nonfarm employment is 2.1 percent
in 2012 and 2.5 percent in 2013. A total of 112,200 nonfarm jobs are forecast to be gained over the two projected years (2012 and
2013).
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The overall employment situation in Arizona is improving. An initial increase in home prices in Arizona and some other states is a
positive sign. There are a number of factors that have helped the U.S., aswell as Arizona's economy, gradually improve and add jobs:

Continued improvement in real Gross Domestic Product, real personal income at the state and national levels, employment,
and retail sales.

Continued employment gains in the private sector, increasing private domestic investment, gradual rise in the index of
industrial production and rate of capacity utilization, high levels of corporate profit, a gradual resurgencein private residential
construction permits.

Continued gradual climb in household net worth as the decline in U.S. home prices have slowed, a continued decline in the
fraction of disposable income used for household debt payments, and continued growth in U.S. exports.

Further stabilization of home prices in Arizona, with some rise in the Phoenix metropolitan area. The residential real estate
market in Arizona and Phoenix metropolitan area is showing an improvement as measured by various indicators, including an
increase in the number of building permits issued.

Expansion of non-revolving consumer credit since 2011 has served as an impetus to expanding economic activity, although
revolving consumer credit levels have remained flat. Consumer sentiment and consumer spending has shown signs of
improvement.

With an improving domestic economy and employment growth in the private sector, consumers are expected to spend more as their
incomes rise. Increased spending will generate further economic activity, creating a higher demand for goods and services. Outside of
the U.S,, the economies of Asia and Latin America are expected to grow at a slower pace during the forecast time period. These
expanding foreign economies are projected to create growing demand for exports that are fabricated in the U.S. and Arizona.

Although positive signs of economic improvement continue, there are some domestic factors that could dampen the growth of the local
economy. Regardless of the uncertainties, we remain confident in both the strength of the positive signs described above, and in our
forecast. Nevertheless, the following possible threats should be considered:

Constrained budgets as well as economic and financial uncertainty for a large majority of households. Despite some job
growth, many consumers in the U.S. continue to face employment insecurity, lower wages and benefits, high levels of debt,
rising gasoline costs, and rising prices for essentials such as food, energy, and hedlthcare that limits the amount of funds
available for discretionary spending. The most recent drought in the Midwestern states, an important agricultural region, has
already sent food prices soaring in the U.S. and the rest of the world.

Weak real estate markets in both the residential and commercial sectors could inhibit the overall economy. Signs of weakness
include vacant properties, non-performing loans, under water mortgages and continued home mortgage foreclosures. The
residential real estate market, although in the beginning stages of a gradual recovery, is showing more signs of a recovery
than the commercial real estate market.

Business reluctance to invest despite high levels of corporate profits and cash reserves as a consequence of demand
uncertainty.

Public sector fiscal consolidation through spending reductions and/or tax increases to reduce debts could have a bearing on the
growth of the economy as a result of the impending "fiscal cliff*, the conundrum that the U.S. government will face given the
terms of the Budget Control Act of 2011. According to a pre-arranged legislative agreement, scheduled spending will be
reduced and taxes will rise to reduce the federal government deficit and debt levels. Spending is scheduled to be reduced in
both civilian and military programs. Tax cuts are scheduled to expire and new taxes have been legidated to begin in 2013.
Reduced spending and increased taxes are expected to lower the level of aggregate demand in the U.S. economy and slow the
rate of economic and employment growth.

Besides the federal government, state and local governments continue to have budget problems. Many state and local
governments have recently been using increases in tax revenues to build up emergency reserve funds to deal with any future
economic downturns and have not been increasing their levels of spending.

In addition to the factors listed above, there is some uncertainty on the international front:

Debt repayment problems in the Euro Monetary Zone economies, and economic contraction. Countries in the Euro Monetary
Zone serve as an important market for U.S. exports. They also serve as a source of foreign investment funds for U.S. financial
markets. U.S. investments in European banks could run the risk of devaluation and default in a recession. However, news of
proposed European Central Bank support for sovereign debt reduces the risk. Although trade with Arizona is limited, it
exposes the U.S. to the risk of European financial and economic problems.

Potential international military conflict in the Persian Gulf with Iran. A military conflict could disrupt the flow of oil out of
the Persian Gulf and the Middle East, restrict the global supply of petroleum, further increase gasoline prices, and restrict
economic activity around the world.
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i  Economic growth is dowing in the People€' s Republic of China resulting from a reduced pace of expansion in China's export
markets. The Chinese government is beginning the process of changing the structure of the Chinese mainland economy from
being driven by low value added goods for export to Europe, the U.S., and the rest of the world to more value added
manufactured goods using higher technology and higher skilled labor for their internal demand. This could create a new
middle class dependent on U.S. imports. In the short run, the magnitude of the impact of the dowdown in China is not
certain.

Individual Sectors

The Professional and Business Services sector is projected to have an increase of 9,800 jobs, or 2.9 percent, in 2012 and 11,700 jobs, or
3.3 percent, in 2013. The sub-sectors with the largest projected job gains over the projection period include Employment Services,
Services to Buildings and Dwellings and Professional, Scientific and Technical Services. Business firms are expected to hire
contingent labor as a lower cost means to expand output during the early, uncertain stages of an economic recovery. Management and
Business Support Services are the sub-sectors with forecast job losses. A continued need to control costs and minimize expendituresis
the cause of the projected employment decreases in Management and Business Support services.

The Educational and Health Services sector is forecast to gain 9,700 jobs, or 2.7 percent, in 2012 and 10,800 jobs, or 2.9 percent, in
2013. The largest projected increases in employment are forecast in the sub-sectors of Ambulatory Health Services and Hospitals.
Government spending reductions have the potential to severely curtail growth in the healthcare sectors. Private Educational Services
are the sub-sectors with the smallest projected gains in employment as a result of more people leaving school to re-enter the workforce
in an improving economy.

The Trade, Transportation, and Utilities sector is forecast to gain 9,300 jobs, or 2.0 percent, in 2012 and 10,500 jobs, or 2.2 percent, in
2013. The order of sub-sectors with the largest to smallest forecast gains include: Retail Trade; Transportation, Warehousing and
Utilities; and Wholesale Trade. In the Retail Trade sub-sectors, Food and Beverage stores along with Motor Vehicles and Parts
Dealers sub-sectors have the largest projected increases in employment. Improving consumer finances is anticipated to increase
consumer spending and, therefore, contribute to job gains in Retail Trade. In the Transportation, Warehousing, and Utilities sub-
sectors, Truck Transportation is forecast to have the largest job gains. Increases in employment are projected across most other sub-
sectorsincluding Air Transportation and Utilities.

The Leisure and Hospitality (L&H) sector is projected to have an increase of 8,600 jobs, or 3.3 percent, in 2012 and 9,500 jobs, or 3.5
percent, in 2013. The sub-sectors with the largest projected job gains are Food Services and Drinking Places and Arts, Entertainment
and Recreation. Despite a projected increase in employment from 2012 to 2013, Accommodations has a dight forecasted loss in jobs
for 2012. Growing demand for domestic and international tourism is projected to bolster employment in the L&H sector.

The Construction sector is forecast to gain 6,100 jobs, or 5.5 percent, in 2012 and 7,000 jobs, or 5.9 percent, in 2013. The largest
forecast job gains from 2011 to 2013 are in the sub-sectors of Specialty Trades followed by Heavy and Civil Engineering Construction.
Building construction is the only sub-sector with projected job losses. Repair and maintenance activities along with new infrastructure
projects such as the expansion of light rail in Phoenix are expected to bolster employment in Specialty Trades and Heavy and Civil
Engineering Construction sub-sectors. The vacant properties in residential and commercial real estate are anticipated to stop the
growth of employment in Building Construction sub-sectors.

The Financial Activities sector is projected to have an employment increase of 5,000 jobs, or 3.0 percent, in 2012 and 5,400 jobs, or
3.1 percent, in 2013. During the 2011 to 2013 forecast time frame, the sub-sectors with the largest projected gainsin employment are:
Credit Intermediation and Monetary Authorities; Real Estate, Rental and Leasing; and Securities, Commodities Contracts and
Investments. Insurance, Funds and Trusts also has projected job gains.

The Government sector is forecast to gain 2,000 jobs, or 0.5 percent, in 2012 and 3,800 jobs, or 0.9 percent, in 2013. The majority of
projected increases in employment from 2011 to 2013 are in the sub-sectors of public education at the State and Local government
levels. Slight job gains are also forecast for the non-education sectors of local government. However, job losses are projected for the
Federal government and non-education sectors of State government.

The Manufacturing sector is projected to have an employment increase of 2,000 jobs, or 1.4 percent, in 2012 and 2,900 jobs, or 1.9
percent, in 2013. From 2011 to 2013, job gains are forecast across most Durable Goods sectors including Fabricated Metals,
Aerospace and Computer and Electronic products, and Non-Durable Goods. However, job losses are projected in the unreported
Durable Goods sectors.



The Natural Resources and Mining (NRM) sector is forecast to gain 200 jobs, or 1.9 percent, in 2012 and less than 50 jobs, or 0.4
percent, in 2013. From 2011 to 2013, slowing job gains are projected in Metal Ore Mining sub-sectors as a consequence of slowing
economic growth in Asia and an emerging recession in Europe. Reductions in employment levels are forecast in the Non-Metal Ore
Mining sub-sectors of the NRM.

The Information sector is projected to have a decrease in employment of 100 jobs, or 0.1 percent, in 2012 and an increase in
employment of 300 jobs, or 0.8 percent in 2013. During the 2011 to 2013 projections time frame, slowing job losses are forecast in the
Telecommunications sub-sectors. However, accelerating job gains are projected in the Non-Telecommunications sub-sectors.

The Other Services sector is forecast to lose 1,600 jobs, or 1.8 percent in 2012 and 900 jobs, or 1.0 percent in 2013. Increased
employment insecurity, reduced wages and benefits, large levels of consumer and mortgage debt, and rising food, energy and
healthcare costs have resulted in retrenchment of consumer spending towards establishments primarily engaged in raising funds for a
wide range of social welfare activities. These establishments include foundations or charitable trusts, religious, professional, and civic
organizations, etc.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Arizona’s economic condition during fiscal year 2012 continued to improve over the previous year resulting in a steady upward trend
in General Fund tax revenue collections. The fiscal year 2012 budget included the continued additional support to the General Fund of
the temporary 1-cent sales tax increase that became effective June 1, 2010. The State Legislature enacted laws regarding millions in
shortfall solutions as part of the fiscal year 2012 budget that included spending reductions, fund transfers and revenue adjustments.
Additionally, the State Legislature implemented new ongoing revenue from higher local contributions, including increased county cash
contributions, and shifting Motor Vehicle Division and Department of Public Safety funding from the Highway Fund to the Highway
User Revenue Fund (HURF). New one-time revenues enacted by the Legislature included a tax amnesty program which began in
September 2011. Also, decreased contributions to urban revenue sharing based on state income tax collections resulted in significant
revenue gains as well.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

T'he Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Arizona for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This was the eighth
consecutive year that the State has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

We wish to express our sincere appreciation to the many individuals whose dedicated efforts have made this report possible. The
preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professionalism and dedication demonstrated by the financial
and management personnel of each State agency, board, commission, council, administration, office, institution of higher education,
and all other organizations within the reporting entity.

rian C. McNeil/ / D. Clark Partridge
Director / State Comptroller
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STATE OF ARIZONA

DEBRA K. DAVENPORT, CPA OFFICE OF THE MELANIE M. CHESNEY
AUDITOR GENERAL DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL

AUDITOR GENERAL

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Janice K. Brewer, Governor
State of Arizona

The Honorable Andy Biggs, President
Arizona State Senate

The Honorable Andy Tobin, Speaker
Arizona House of Representatives

The Honorable Rebecca White Berch, Chief Justice
Arizona Supreme Court

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and aggregate remaining
fund information of the State of Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of certain
departments, the State’s retirement plans, and certain discretely presented component units, which
account for the following percentages of the assets and revenues, additions, and other financing sources,
as applicable, of the opinion units affected:

Revenues/Additions/
Other Financing
Opinion Unit/Department Assets Sources

Government-wide Statements
Governmental activities:

Arizona Department of Transportation 66.19% 11.55%
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment
System 2.83% 16.39%
Early Childhood Development and Health Board 1.49% 0.52%
Business-type activities:
Arizona Correctional Industries 0.23% 0.69%
Arizona Department of Transportation 1.14% 0.11%
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System 0.13% 0.56%
Arizona State Lottery 1.10% 11.58%
Aggregate discretely presented component units 98.29% 99.05%
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Revenues/Additions/
Other Financing
Opinion Unit/Department Assets Sources

Fund Statements
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund—Arizona Health Care Cost
Containment System 26.78% 19.14%
Transportation and Aviation Planning,
Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund—

Arizona Department of Transportation 100.00% 100.00%
Major Enterprise Fund:
Lottery Fund—Arizona State Lottery 100.00% 100.00%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information:
Arizona Correctional Industries 0.04% 0.59%
Arizona Department of Transportation 1.28% 18.82%
Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System 0.13% 2.54%
Arizona State Retirement System 63.54% 34.81%
Corrections Officer Retirement Plan 2.91% 1.51%
Early Childhood Development and Health Board 1.00% 2.03%
Elected Officials’ Retirement Plan 0.67% 0.39%
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 11.46% 5.84%

Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those departments, retirement
plans, and component units, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the Arizona Power Authority, the University of Arizona Health Network, and the
Universities - Affiliated Component Units, except for those of the University Public Schools, Inc., which
were reported as discretely presented component units, were not audited by the other auditors in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Arizona as of June 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Amounts presented for the Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities District (Rio Nuevo) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, were unaudited. Rio Nuevo is a discretely presented component unit of the State
and is included in the component units column on the government-wide financial statements. This had no
effect on our opinion for the aggregate discretely presented component units as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2012.



As described in Note 1.0, the State established the Arizona Commerce Authority on July 1, 2011, that was
reported as a discretely presented component unit. This constitutes a change in reporting entity.

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis on
pages 21 through 33, the Budgetary Comparison Schedules on pages 135 through 151, the Infrastructure
Assets information on pages 152 through 155, and the Agent Benefit Plans’ Funding Progress on page
156 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other auditors have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund statements and
schedules and the introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of the State’s management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards by us and the other
auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described previously, and the
reports of the other auditors, the combining and individual fund statements and schedules are fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. The introductory and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report on our consideration of
the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Debbie Davenport
Auditor General

January 14, 2013
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a discussion and anaysis of the State of Arizona's (the State’ s) financial performance, providing an
overview of the activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal
letter at the front of this report and with the State’s financia statements, which follow this section. The completeness
and fairness of the following information isthe responsibility of the State’ s officials and management.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

i Theassets of the State exceeded liahilities at the close of the fiscal year by $21.7 billion (reported as net assets). Of
this amount, a deficit of $2.5 hillion exists for unrestricted net assets, $5.8 hillion is restricted for specific purposes
(restricted net assets), and $18.4 hillion isinvested in capital assets, net of related debt.

i The State's total net assets increased in fiscal year 2012 by $1.9 billion. Net assets of governmental activities
increased by $1.7 billion, while net assets of the business-type activitiesincreased by $194.4 million.

Fund Level:

i Asof the close of the fiscal year, the State's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.5
billion, an increase of $1.1 hillion from the beginning of the year. After accounting for non-spendable, restricted,
and committed fund balances of $3.5 billion, $1.9 hillion, and $623.6 million, respectively, the State's unassigned
fund balance had a deficit of $470.9 million, or 9% of combined fund bal ances.

i Asof the close of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the Generd Fund had a deficit of $437.0 million,
which is approximately 2% of total General Fund expenditures.

i  The Land Endowments Fund reported fund balance at fiscal year end of $3.4 hillion, an increase of $234.6 million
during the year. The Land Endowments Fund is used to help finance public education within the State as required
by the federal government and the State’ s Constitution.

i The enterprise funds reported net assets at fiscal year end of $2.7 billion, an increase of $155.4 million during the
year.

Long-term Debt:

i The State' stotal long-term primary government debt increased during the fiscal year to $10.2 hillion, an increase of
$117.3 million (or 1%). Changes during the year included the addition of revenue bonds, grant anticipation notes,
and certificates of participation, of $1.1 hillion, $43.8 million, and $158.1 million, respectively. Included in the
increase in long-term primary government debt are increases in net issuance premiums of $147.4 million and
increases in deferred amounts on refundings of $15.2 million. Also, the State retired $814.6 million of revenue
bonds, $101.1 million of grant anticipation notes, and $329.3 million of certificates of participation.

More detailed information regarding the government-wide financial statements, fund level financia statements, and
long-term debt activity can be found beginning on page 38.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State's basic financial satements, which are comprised of three
components. (1) government-wide financia statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financia
statements. Required Supplementary Information and other supplementary information are included in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements (Reporting the State as a Whole)

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad overview of the State of Arizona's finances in a manner
similar to private sector business. The financial statementsreport information about the State, as a whole, and about its
activities that should help answer this question: Is the State, as a whole, better or worse off as a result of this year’s
activities? These statements include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. The
current year’'s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardiess of when cash is received or paid. The
government-wide financial statementsinclude the following:
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The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Financial Position (pages 38-40) present all of the State' s assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net
assets measure whether the State’ s financia position isimproving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Activities (pages 42-44) present information showing how the State' s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changesin net assets are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the change
occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned, but unused
vacation leave). Additionally, long-term assets and liabilities are reported regardless of when these assets are expected
to be converted to cash, or when the liability is expected to be liquidated (e.g., capital assets and long-term debt).

Government-wide statements report three activities:

i Governmental Activities — Most of the Stat€'s basic services are reported under this category. Taxes and
intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services. The Legidature, the Judiciary, and the general
operations of the Executive departmentsfall within the governmental activities.

i Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain
services it provides. Lottery tickets, the Stat€' s unemployment compensation services, the Industrial Commission
Specia Fund, and the State’' s three universities are examples of business-type activities.

i  Discretely Presented Component Units — Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected
officials of the State are financially accountable. The Water Infrastructure Finance Authority, the University of
Arizona Health Network, the Arizona Power Authority, the Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities District, the Greater
Arizona Development Authority, and the Arizona Commerce Authority are discretely presented component units
reported by the State. Based on GASB Statement No. 39, the State has added component units affiliated with the
Universities whose financial statements are prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, as adopted by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. These organizations include the ASU
Foundation, the Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation, the U of A Foundation, and other non-major
component units affiliated with the Universities. Financial statements for these organizations are presented
immediately following the government-wide statements to emphasize that they are prepared in accordance with
accounting standards other than those promulgated by GASB, and include a statement of financial position (page
40) and a statement of activities (page 44). See pages 69-72 and 120-131 for more information on discretely
presented component units.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State 3 Major Funds)

The fund financia statements begin on page 45 and provide detailed information about the major individual funds. A
fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. In addition to the major funds, page 160 begins the individual
fund data for the non-major funds. The State' s funds are divided into three categories — governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary — each category uses different accounting approaches.

i Governmental funds —Most of the Stat€'s basic services are reported in the governmental funds, which focus on
how money flowsinto and out of those funds and the balances | eft at year end that are available for future spending.
The governmenta fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view of the State’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State' s programs. These funds
are reported using modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily
be converted to cash. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, capital projects, debt service, and
permanent funds. Because the focus of governmental fundsis narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial satements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. This report includes two
schedules (pages 46 and 48-49) that reconcile the amounts reported on the governmental fund financial statements
(modified accrua accounting) with governmental activities (accrua accounting) reported on the appropriate
government-wide statement.
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Governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 45 and 47 of this report.

i Proprietary funds —When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside
customers or to other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds (enterprise and internal service) utilize accrual accounting; the same method used by private
sector businesses. Enterprise funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public —
such as the State Lottery and Universities. Internal service funds report activities that provide supplies and
services for the Stat€'s other programs and activities — such as the State’ s Risk Management Fund. Internal
service fund operations primarily benefit governmental funds and are reported as governmental activities on
the government-wide statements. The reconciliation between the government-wide financial statements for
business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements is presented at the end of the propriety
fund financial statements on pages 52-55.

Proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 50-59 of this report.

i  Fiduciary funds —The State acts as a trustee or fiduciary for its employee pension plans. It is aso responsible
for other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The State's
fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets beginning on page 60. These funds are reported using accrual accounting and include penson and
other employee benefit trugt, investment trust, and agency funds. The government-wide statements exclude
fiduciary fund activities and balances because these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent
discretionary assets of the State to finance its operations.

Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found pages 60-61 of this report.
Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financia Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes can be found beginning on page 69 of this report.
Required Supplementary Information

Following the basic financiad statements is additional Required Supplementary Information that further explains and
supports the information in the financial satements. The Required Supplementary Information includes budgetary
expenditure comparison schedules for the General Fund and each major special revenue fund and a reconciliation of the
schedules of statutory and U.S. GAAP expenditures for the fiscal year. This section also includes schedules of
condition and maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State' s infrastructure and agent benefit plans’ funding
progress schedules.

Required supplementary information begins on page 135 of this report.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental, non-major
enterprise, all internal service funds, al fiduciary funds, non-major component units, and non-major universities —
affiliated component units. These funds are added together, by fund type, and presented in single columns in the basic
financial statements, but are not reported individualy, as are major funds on the governmenta funds and proprietary
funds financial statements. Budgetary expenditure comparison schedules for the non-major special revenue funds and
the land endowment funds are also included.

Other supplementary information begins on page 160 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The State's overall financial position and operations for the past year for the primary government are summarized, as
follows, based on theinformation included in the government-wide financial statements.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Net Assets as of June 30, 2012 and 2011
(expressed in thousands)

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government Tota
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current assets $ 5057124 $ 3918220 $ 1372172 $ 1366923 $ 6429296 $ 5,285,143
Capita assets 20,394,137 19,809,830 4,080,053 3,780,580 24,474,190 23,590,410
Other non-current assets 5,049,766 4,835,725 1,556,428 1,479,125 6,606,194 6,314,850
Tota Assets 30,501,027 28,563,775 7,008,653 6,626,628 37,509,680 35,190,403
Current liabilities 4,188,849 3,888,505 838,541 886,322 5,027,390 4,774,827
Non-current liabilities 7,373,015 7,466,998 3,380,777 3,145,324 10,753,792 10,612,322
Tota Liabilities 11,561,864 11,355,503 4,219,318 4,031,646 15,781,182 15,387,149
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 16,940,512 16,326,569 1,483,416 1,397,683 18,423,928 17,724,252
Restricted net assets 5,349,966 5,125,527 496,444 501,437 5,846,410 5,626,964
Unrestricted net assets (3,351,315) (4,243,824) 809,475 695,862 (2,541,840) (3,547,962)
Total Net Assets $ 18,939,163 $ 17,208272 $ 2,789,335 $ 2594982 $ 21,728498 $ 19,803,254

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the State’'s combined net assets totaled $21.7 hillion, reflecting an increase of $1.9
billion during the current fiscal year.

The largest portion of the State€'s net assets (85%) represents capital assets, net of related debt of $18.4 hillion.
Additions to roads and bridges provided the majority of the governmenta activities increase of $613.9 million. The
State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens, consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the State' s investment in its capital assets is reported net of accumulated depreciation and related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt are planned to be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves are not typically used to liquidate these liahilities.

The State’ s net assets also included $5.8 hillion (27%) of resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The governmental activities increase in restricted net assets of $224.4 million is primarily the result of an
increase of $253.7 million in the amount restricted by the State's Constitution for basic education funded by the Land
Endowments Fund. Thisincrease was partially offset by reductions of restrictions for other government programs.

After accounting for the above net asset restrictions, the State has a remaining deficit of $2.5 billion (12%) reported as
unrestricted net assets.
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Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Sales taxes
Income taxes
Tobacco taxes
Property taxes
Motor vehicle and fuel taxes
Other taxes

Unrestricted investment earnings

Unrestricted grants and
contributions

Gain (loss) on sale of trust land

Miscellaneous revenue
Total Revenues

Expenses:
General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Transportation
Natural resources
Intergovernmental revenue
sharing
Interest on long-term debt
Universities
Unemployment Compensation
Industrial Commission Special
Fund
Lottery
Other business-type activities
Total Expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
contributions, extraordinary
item, and transfers

Contributions to permanent
endowments

Extraordinary item:
Insurance recovery, net of

impairment loss

Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

State of Arizona-Primary Government

Changes in Net Assets for Fiscal Years June 30, 2012 and 2011
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Primary Government Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
847,502 $ 837,714 $ 2983424 $ 2745116 $ 3830926 $ 3,582,830
11,357,470 12,580,013 1,705,773 2,212,673 13,063,243 14,792,686
778,572 745,559 53,571 14,799 832,143 760,358
6,296,151 5,942,250 55,309 52,913 6,351,460 5,995,163
3,706,698 3,366,783 - - 3,706,698 3,366,783
317,369 320,657 - - 317,369 320,657
30,656 32,038 - - 30,656 32,038
1,581,909 1,565,525 - - 1,581,909 1,565,525
522,510 550,430 - - 522,510 550,430
79,190 29,183 49,501 68,401 128,691 97,584
40,678 16,468 3,468 - 44,146 16,468
125,479 (154,359) - - 125,479 (154,359)
167,604 140,854 155,757 50,510 323,361 191,364
25,851,788 25,973,115 5,006,803 5,144,412 30,858,591 31,117,527
840,189 929,107 - - 840,189 929,107
11,992,408 12,558,119 - - 11,992,408 12,558,119
151,937 149,649 - - 151,937 149,649
5,331,848 5,467,543 - - 5,331,848 5,467,543
1,380,999 1,299,205 - - 1,380,999 1,299,205
808,967 857,194 - - 808,967 857,194
213,339 196,210 - - 213,339 196,210
2,473,881 2,462,178 - - 2,473,881 2,462,178
350,483 341,801 - - 350,483 341,801
- - 3,629,568 3,533,977 3,629,568 3,533,977
- - 1,069,531 1,655,364 1,069,531 1,655,364
- - 83,290 27,19 83,290 27,196
- - 496,830 439,069 496,830 439,069
- - 113,347 115,442 113,347 115,442
23,544,051 24,261,006 5,392,566 5,771,048 28,936,617 30,032,054
2,307,737 1,712,109 (385,763) (626,636) 1,921,974 1,085,473
- - 3,270 3,656 3,270 3,656
) ] - 3,884 - 3,884
(576,846) (734,892) 576,846 734,892 - -
1,730,891 977,217 194,353 115,796 1,925,244 1,093,013
17,208,272 16,231,055 2,594,982 2,479,186 19,803,254 18,710,241
18,939,163 $ 17,208272 $ 2,789,335 $ 259,982 $ 21728498 $ 19,803,254
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Change in Net Assets

Governmental Activities —Net Assetsincreased by $1.7 billion from fiscal year 2011, or a 10% increase from fiscal year
2011 total net assets. Reported sales tax and income tax revenues increased by $353.9 million, or 6%, and $339.9
million, or 10%, from fiscal year 2011, respectively. The increase in tax collections generaly reflects increased
economic activity in the State during fiscal year 2012. Net taxable sales increased by approximately 6% from fiscal
year 2011 resulting in the increased reported sales tax revenue. The largest increases in net taxable sales during fiscal
year 2012 were in retail sales, use tax, restaurants and bars, and contracting. Over half of the increase in income tax
revenue for the State during fiscal year 2012 was due to increased withholding and individual income tax collections;
however, corporate income tax revenue aso increased during the year. During fiscal year 2012, the State received less
federal stimulus fundsfrom the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). This contributed to the decreasein
fiscal year 2012 operating grants and contributions revenue of $1.2 billion, or 10%, as compared to fiscal year 2011,
however, the decrease in ARRA funding also resulted in decreased expenses in health and welfare and education. In
addition, there was a $279.8 million net increase on the sale of State trust land. This increase resulted from land sales
and no additional increase to the estimate of uncollectable accounts receivable recognized in fiscal year 2011 due to the
non-payment of long-term sales contracts. Furthermore, there were decreases in expenses for health and welfare and
education of $565.7 million and $135.7 million, respectively. The decrease in health and welfare expenses resulted
primarily from the AHCCCS implementing program changes during fiscal year 2012 in the form of enrollment freezes,
provider rate reductions, and medica service limits, as well as the expiration of ARRA funding. The reduction in
education expenses is primarily a result of reductions in operating State aid to community colleges (to offset the
districts estimated year-over-year operating revenue growth) and reductions to the Department of Education expenses
related to the capital outlay revenue limit for school districts with a student count of fewer than 1,100 pupils (which the
school districts may partially offset with federal Education Jobs Fund Program monies), as well as the expiration of
ARRA funding. Also contributing to the increase in governmenta activities net assets during fiscal year 2012 was a
reduction of transfers of $158.0 million primarily resulting from decreases in the Universities operating lump sum
appropriations from the General Fund.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’' s governmental activitiesis shown below for
fiscal years 2012 and 2011. Net cost (income) is the total cost less revenues generated by the activities and shows the
financial burden placed upon the State’ s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Governmental Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services

2012 2011 2012 2011
Functions/Programs:

Genera government $ 840,189 $ 929,107 $ 412,626 $ 391,881
Health and welfare 11,992,408 12,558,119 2,501,647 2,289,217
Inspection and regulation 151,937 149,649 (20,835) (21,380)
Education 5,331,848 5,467,543 3,879,205 3,706,090
Protection and safety 1,380,999 1,299,205 1,106,410 1,059,449
Transportation 808,967 857,194 (238,715) (221,736)
Natural resources 213,339 196,210 95,805 90,220
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 2,473,881 2,462,178 2,473,881 2,462,178
Interest on long-term debt 350,483 341,801 350,483 341,801

Total Governmental Activities $ 23,544,051 $ 24,261,006 $ 10,560,507 $ 10,097,720
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Expenses and Program Revenues
Governmental Activities for Fiscal Year 2012
(in millions of dollars)
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Business-type Activities —Net Assets increased by $194.4 million from fiscal year 2011, or 7%. This increase is
primarily due to an increase in net assets for the Universities of $193.3 million. Non-operating revenues and transfers
from the General Fund more than offset the Universities' operating loss of $1.0 billion. Although the Universities
experienced increased operating revenues due to approved student tuition rate increases and increased enrollment, the
revenue increase was offset by a decrease in State appropriation transfers from the Genera Fund and increases in
expenses for instruction, academic support, and research. The net asset decreases in both the Industrial Commission
Special Fund and the Unemployment Compensation Fund partialy offset the net asset increase discussed above;
however, these decreases were offset by the Universities allocated share of Interna Service Fund net revenue. The
$32.8 million decrease in net assets of the Industrial Commission Special Fund was largely due to an increase of $55.2
million in the actuarial accrued insurance loss for medical and compensation over the fiscal year 2011 estimate. This
increase isreported in the cost of sales and benefits expense and primarily results in the operating loss of $54.8 million
in fiscal year 2012. In addition, a decrease in investment income of $23.9 million during fiscal year 2012 aso
contributed to the decrease in net assets, as compared to the prior fiscal year. The Unemployment Compensation Fund
also experienced a decrease in net assets of $16.8 million in fiscal year 2012; however, this was less than the net asset
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decrease of $207.7 million in the prior fiscal year. The cost of sales and benefits and the intergovernmenta revenue
decreased $591.8 million and $506.6 million, respectively, as compared to the prior fiscal year.

A comparison of the net cost (income) of services by function for the State’ s business-type activities is shown below for
fiscal years 2011 and 2012. Net cost (income) is the total cost less revenues generated by the activities and shows the
financial burden placed upon the State’ s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Business-type Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net Cost (Income) of Services

2012 2011 2012 2011

Functions/Programs:
Universities $ 3,629,568 $ 3,533,977 $ 642,418 $ 737451
Unemployment Compensation 1,069,531 1,655,364 105,819 208,185
Industrial Commission

Special Fund 83,290 27,196 58,315 5,535
Lottery 496,830 439,069 (149,845) (144,468)
Other 113,347 115,442 (6,909) (8,243
Total Business-type Activities $ 5,392,566 $ 5,771,048 $ 649,798 $ 798,460

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE S FUNDS
The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds —The general government functions are contained in the general, special revenue, debt service,
capital projects, and permanent funds. The focus of the State’ s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the State's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At June 30, 2012, unassigned fund balance of the General
Fund had a deficit of $437.0 million, whiletotal fund balance closed the year at a deficit of $79.7 million. Asameasure
of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures and other financing uses. Unassigned fund balance represents a negative 2% of total
expenditures and other financing uses, while total fund balance is less than a negative 1% of the same amount.

The fund balance of the State's General Fund increased $623.5 million during the fiscal year. The primary reasons for
the increase in fund balance during the fiscal year are increased collections of sales and income taxes, decreases in
health and welfare and education expenditures, and a decrease in transfers to the Universities, as discussed in the
government-wide financial analysis beginning on page 24. As a result of these revenue increases and expenditure
reductions, revenues exceeded expenditures by $1.2 hillion, before other financing sources and uses. Other financing
sources and uses partially offset this excess by $551.8 million. Other financing sources and uses consist primarily of
transfers to the Universities in support of higher education, offset by legidative transfers from other funds to the
General Fund. Overdl revenues decreased by $494.6 million (2%) and expenditures decreased by $1.0 hillion (5%)
from fiscal year 2011. Although sales taxes and income taxes increased by atotal of $626.9 million (7%), thisincrease
was more than offset by a decrease of $1.2 hillion (10%) in intergovernmental revenue. The expiration of the federal
fiscal stabilization program, which is part of the ARRA, contributed to the decrease in intergovernmental revenue;
however, expenditures also decreased as a result of reduced ARRA funding. The reduction in hedth and welfare
expenditures and education expenditures was discussed in the government-wide financial analysis beginning on page
24.
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Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund is responsible for the repair and
maintenance of existing roads, paying the debt service for roads that are built from the issuance of revenue bonds and
grant anticipation notes, and providing technical assistance with road construction provided by contractors hired by the
Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). Tota fund balance decreased $21.0 million during fiscal year 2012.
Although revenues exceeded expenditures by $289.6 million, transfers to non-major governmental funds of $331.7
million to pay debt service offset this excess. In addition, capital outlay expenditures increased by $116.8 million, as
compared to the prior fiscal year.

Land Endowments Fund

The fund was established when the federal government granted Arizona statehood. Both the State’s Constitution and
the federal government require that the land grants given to the State be maintained indefinitely, and the earnings from
the land grants should be used for public education, primarily K-12. The Land Endowments Fund total fund balance
increased $234.6 million during fiscal year 2012. Endowment investments increased $224.4 million, at fiscal year-end,
primarily due to receipts from land sales of $137.4 million and a net increase in the fair vaue of investments of $104.2
million.

Proprietary funds

The business-type activities discussion for the fund level financial statements of the State' s enterprise funds provide the
same type of information found in the government-wide financial analysis beginning on page 24.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the fiscal year, the original budget was amended by various supplemental appropriations and appropriation
revisons. Differences between the original budget of $14.9 hillion and the final amended budget of $16.5 hillion
resulted in a $1.6 hillion net increase in appropriations for the General Fund, before adjustments. Some of the
significant changesin the General Fund appropriations were:

1. $160.9 million increase due to prior fiscal year obligations that were paid in the current fiscal year per ARS
§35-191.

2. $914.3 million increase to the AHCCCS' origina budget is primarily due to supplementa appropriation
increases based on projected shortfalls that resulted from delayed approval and certain modification by the
Centersfor Medicare and Medicaid Services to the Governor's proposed Medicaid Reform plan.

3. $272.8 million increase to the Universities' original budget is primarily due to payment deferrals from fiscal
year 2011, which were budgeted in fiscal year 2012, and for lease purchase capita financing for research
infrastructure facilities.

4. $250.0 million increase to the Genera Accounting Office's original budget is due to a supplementa
appropriation for the Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF). The transfer of monies to the BSF is not included in
the General Appropriations Act. The BSF is described more fully in the accompanying Notes to the Financial
Statements beginning on page 69.

The actual expenditures were less than the final budget by $737.1 million, after adjustments. Of this amount, $52.0
million will continue as legidative multiple fiscal year spending authority for fiscal years 2013 and beyond, depending
upon the budgetary guidelines of the Legislature. The remaining $685.1 million represents the unused portion of the
State’ slegidatively authorized annua operating budget.
Additional budgetary information can be found on pages 135-151 of this report.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets:

The State€'s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012 totaled
$24.5 hillion, net of accumulated depreciation. The total primary government increase in capital assets for the current
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period was 4%, with a 3% increase in capital assets used for governmental activities and an 8% increase for business-
type activities. Depreciation charges of the governmenta and business-type activities for the fiscal year totaled $370.1
million.

Major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year incduded the following:

i The Universities additions to capital assets totaled $630.2 million and included increased investments in buildings
for ingruction and research, building renewal, and other capital projects.

i The ADOT started or completed roads and bridges totaling $1.3 billion during the fiscal year.
For the government-wide financia statement presentation, all depreciable assets were depreciated from the acquisition
date to the end of the current fiscal year. Capital asset purchases of the governmenta funds are reported in the fund-

level financial satements as expenditures.

Capitd assets for the governmenta and business-type activities as of June 30, 2012 are presented below (expressed in
thousands):

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Land $ 2886458 $ 2,757,806 $ 202,913 $ 186143 $ 3089371 $ 2,943,949
Buildings 2,106,913 1,899,835 4,622,149 4,196,305 6,729,062 6,096,140
Improvements other than

buildings 159,380 157,580 4,816 4,816 164,196 162,396
Equipment 795,147 757,691 1,527,822 1,460,701 2,322,969 2,218,392
Software and intangibles 130,947 129,857 19,328 19,328 150,275 149,185
Collections (non-depreciable) - - 19,173 18,657 19,173 18,657
Infrastructure 12,229,571 11,626,519 449,069 399,431 12,678,640 12,025,950
Construction in progress 3,535,660 3,839,780 332,382 404,843 3,868,042 4,244,623
Devel opment in progress 85,586 85,672 3,949 - 89,535 85,672
Less: accumulated depreciation  (1,535,525) (1,444,910) (3,101,548) (2,909,644) (4,637,073) (4,354,554)
Total $20,394,137 $19,809,830 $ 4,080,053 $ 3,780,580 $ 24,474,190 $ 23,590,410

As provided by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has elected to record its infrastructure assets, that the ADOT is
responsible for maintaining, using the modified approach as described in Note 1H. Assets accounted for under the
modified approach include 6,751 center lane miles (21,440 travel lane miles) and 4,754 bridges.

The State manages its roads using the Present Serviceability Rating (PSR), which measures the condition of the
pavement and its ability to serve the traveling public. The PSR uses a five-point scale (5 excellent, 0 impassable) to
characterize the condition of the roadway. The State€'s serviceability rating goa is 3.23 for the overall system. The
most recent assessment indicated that an overall rating of 3.69 was achieved for fiscal year 2012.

The State manages its bridges using the Arizona Bridge Information and Storage System. The State determines the
condition rating based on standards devel oped by the Federal Highway Administration and additional interna criteria.
It isthe policy of the State to maintain a Condition Rating Index (CRI) of 92.5% or better. In fiscal year 2012, a CRI of
93.1% was obtained.
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In addition to many smaller projects, each of the following major highway construction projects in excess of $10.0

million were started during fiscal year 2012 (expressed in thousands):

Contract Contract Current Year
Description Start Date Amount Expenditures

Capacity additions and mgor widening on State Route 303L at Interstate

10 interchange in Maricopa County. 9/16/11 $ 133,910 $ 43,200
Capacity additions and mgor widening on State Route 303L Peoria

Avenue to Mountain View Road in Maricopa County. 7/15/11 128,777 52,692
Capacity additions and reconstruction on Interstate 10, Ruthrauff Road

to Prince Road in Pima County. 7/15/11 76,439 21,656
New facilities— construction of new roads on State Route 24 from State

Route 202L to Ellsworth Road in Maricopa County (Phase ). 2/17/12 71,415 5,117
Capacity additions and mgor widening on State Route 303L Glendale

Avenue to Peoria Avenue in Maricopa County. 4/20/12 65,105 1,532
Construct interim roadway on Northern Avenue from US Route 60 to

State Route 303L in Maricopa County. 7/20/11 57,618 715
System preservation and rel ocations on Interstate 17 at the Cordes

Junction traffic interchangein Yavapai County. 7/15/11 50,928 28,537
Capacity additions and mgor widening on State Route 303L Thomas

Road to Camelback Road in Maricopa County. 4/13/12 31,450 -
Capacity additions and mgor widening on La Canada Drive, River Road

to Ina Road in Pima County. 9/28/11 18,210 -
Capacity additions and mgor widening on State Route 89 Fain Road in

Yavapai County. 12/6/11 16,268 6,234
System preservation — bridge replacement on State Route 70, the Gila

River Bridge at Bylas #2945 in Graham County. 11/18/11 12,685 7,222
System preservati on-restoration/rehab/resurface in Interstate 15 Virgin

River to Utah State Line in Mohave County. 4/20/12 11,556 -

Furthermore, the following major highway construction projects had expenditures in excess of $15.0 million in fiscal
year 2012. These project expenditures include payments made to construction contractors (as shown above) as well as

utility, design, right-of-way, and landscaping costs (expressed in thousands):

Project
Location Description Expenditures
State Route 303L from Peoria Avenue to Mountain View Boulevard in Maricopa County. $ 55312
State Route 303L Interstate 10/State Route 303L Traffic Interchange in Maricopa County. 52,613
State Route 101 Interstate 10 — Tatum Boulevard in Maricopa County. 50,329
State Route 202L, Santan Freeway, Interstate 10 to Gilbert Road in Maricopa County. 33,105
State Route 303L Camelback Road to Olive Avenue in Maricopa County. 32,107
Interstate 17 Cordes Junction Traffic Interchange in Yavapai County. 32,624
State Route 2021, Red Mountain Freeway, Higley Road to US Highway 60 in Maricopa County. 26,035
Interstate 10 Ruthrauff Road to Prince Road in Pima County. 25,861
Interstate 10 Val Vista Road to Early Road in Pinal County. 24,917
Interstate 10 Salt River to Baseline Road in Maricopa County. 21,664
Interstate 10 Interstate 8 to State Route 87 in Pinal County. 20,401
Interstate 10 and State Route 90 Traffic Interchange in Cochise County. 16,620

More detailed information regarding capital assets is on pages 95 and 96.

Long-term debt:

The State issues no general obligation debt insruments. The Arizona Constitution, under Article 9, Section 5, provides
that the State may contract debts not to exceed $350 thousand. This provision has been interpreted to restrict the State
from pledging its credit as a sole payment for debts incurred for the operation of the State government. Asaresult, the
State pledges either dedicated revenue streams or the constructed building or equipment acquired as security for the

repayment of long-term debt instruments.
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Major long-term debt activity during the current fiscal year included the following:

i The State issued revenue bonds totaling $259.5 million to pay the costs of design, right-of-way purchase, or
construction of certain freeways and other routes within Arizona and the costs of issuing the bonds.

i The State issued revenue bonds and grant anticipation notes totaling $499.7 million to refinance existing debt to
obtain debt service savings by taking advantage of lower market interest rates.

i The Universities issued revenue bonds for $364.2 million to fund the acquisition, construction, or renovation of
capital facilities and infrastructure, and to refinance existing debt to obtain debt service savings by taking advantage
of lower market interest rates.

i The Universities issued certificates of participation for $158.1 million to refinance existing debt to obtain debt
service savings by taking advantage of lower market interest rates.

State of Arizona-Primary Government
Outstanding Mg or Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2012
(expressed in thousands)

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenue bonds $3593420 $3529,115 $1,942,755 $1,742,125 $5536,175 $5,271,240
Grant anticipation notes 335,230 392,495 - - 335,230 392,495
Certificates of participation 2,495,825 2,611,255 756,980 812,706 3,252,805 3,423,961
Capital leases 391,184 400,540 163,637 167,841 554,821 568,381
Total $ 6815659 $ 6933405 $2863372 $2,722672 $9679,031  $9,656,077

More detailed information regarding long-term debt begins on page 101.
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Office of Employment and Population Statistics within the Arizona Department of Adminigtration is forecasting a
gradual increase in nonfarm employment in the State for the calendar year 2012-2013 projections time period. The
State is projected to gain 112,200 nonfarm jobs, representing a growth rate of 4.7% over the two projected years of
2012 and 2013. An over-the-year gain of 51,200 jobsis projected in 2012 and 60,900 jobs in 2013. The rate of growth
projected for nonfarm employment is 2.1% in 2012 and 2.5% in 2013.

Additionaly, home prices have stabilized in the State and have begun to rise in the Phoenix metropolitan area.
Residential real estate market in the State and Phoenix metropolitan area is showing an improvement as measured by
variousindicators. Theseincluderising levels of building permits.

The State' s fiscal year 2013 General Fund budget reflects projected growth in base revenues of 5.1%. The net ongoing
revenues are projected to increase from $8.7 billion in fiscal year 2012 to $8.8 hillion in fiscal year 2013. General Fund
spending is projected to increase from $8.5 hillion in fiscal year 2012 to $8.6 billion in fiscal year 2013. The budget
includes spending for the replacement of the State' s financial accounting system, which is scheduled to be implemented
beginning in fiscal year 2016. The General Fund fiscal year 2013 ending balance is projected to be $249 million.

Legidative discussions on the fiscal year 2013 General Fund budget also included analyzing the impact of budget
decisions on estimated fiscal year 2014 and 2015 spending.

The fiscal year 2014 General Fund budget is estimated to spend $8.8 hillion. The spending includes statutory formula
caseload growth plus the federal health care costs associated with the Federal Affordable Care Act (FACA). Effective
January 1, 2014, FACA will expand the number of persons dligible for Medicaid hedth care coverage (including
childless adults currently frozen from coverage) while partially offsetting the costs with higher federal matching rates.
The net ongoing revenues for fiscal year 2014 are estimated to be $8.4 billion. The revenues are lower than in fiscal
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year 2013 due to the expiration of the temporary 1-cent sales tax in May 2013. The fiscal year 2014 General Fund
ending balance is projected with a shortfall of $132 million. The Arizona State Legislature tentatively allocated $132
million of the $450 million from the BSF for planning purposes to balance the fiscal year 2014 budget.

The fiscal year 2015 General Fund budget is estimated to spend $9.2 hillion. The spending includes statutory formula
caseload growth plus a full year of the federal health care costs associated with the FACA. The net ongoing revenues
for fiscal year 2015 are estimated to be $8.7 hillion. This reflects base revenue growth of 5%, reduced by $155 million
in enacted tax reductions. The fiscal year 2015 General Fund ending balance is projected with a shortfall of $486
million. If the $132 million of the original $450 million of BSF depositsis used to balance the fiscal year 2014 General
Fund budget, there would be a total of $318 million remaining in the BSF to help address the projected $486 million
shortfall.

CONTACTING THE STATE COMPTROLLER S OFFICE

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the State' s finances and to demonstrate the State' s accountability for the money it receives. If you have any
guestions about this report or need additional financia information, contact the Arizona Department of Administration,
General Accounting Office, Financial Reporting Section at (602) 542-5405. Y ou may also access and print this report
at http://www.gao.az.gov/financialy.

The State's component units issue their own separately issued audited financial statements. These statements may be
obtained by directly contacting the component unit. Contact information regarding the component units begins on page
69.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Redtricted investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Patient accounts receivable
Other
Internal balances
Due from U.S. Government
Duefrom local governments
Due from others
Due from primary government
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assts:
Redtricted assts:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Securitiesheld in escheat
Investments
Endowment investments
Deferred outflow - interest rate swap
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Infrastructure, land, and other non-depreciable
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESSTYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT UNITS
$ 2857 $ 307,428 $ 310,285 87,319
- 4,114 4,114 -
2,318,818 84,183 2,403,001 254,902
446,938 76,350 523,288 -
- - - 8,286
537,560 44,336 581,896 7,459
- 234,568 234,568 98,330
- - - 17,667
533,916 93,782 627,698 5,524
206,816 3,418 210,234 10,485
148,543 4,971 153,514 272
- - - 125,548
171,181 171,391 342,572 100,230
(223,432) 223,432 - -
611,799 88,358 700,157 -
125,213 - 125,213 -
133,768 - 133,768 -
- - - 2,716
19,032 19,405 38,437 17,416
24,115 16,436 40,551 1,176
5,057,124 1,372,172 6,429,296 737,330
109 10,431 10,540 -
1,289,308 - 1,289,308 10,465
52,878 269,364 322,242 21,300
2,608 - 2,608 80,788
- 122,437 122,437 33,122
197,914 31,042 228,956 1,133,178
- 12,267 12,267 7,038
47,586 - 47,586 -
- 752,534 752,534 115,773
3,444,512 305,682 3,750,194 -
- 22,880 22,880 -
14,851 29,791 44,642 32,002
18,715,141 558,417 19,273,558 44,298
1,678,996 3,521,636 5,200,632 377,139
25,443,903 5,636,481 31,080,384 1,855,103
30,501,027 7,008,653 37,509,680 2,592,433
(Continued)

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Payable for securities purchased
Accrued liabilities

Obligations under securities|oan agreements

Tax refunds payable
Dueto U.S. Government
Dueto local governments
Dueto others

Dueto component units
Unearned deferred revenue

Current portion of accrued insurance losses

Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of other long-term liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue
Contracts payable
Accrued insurance losses
Funds held for others
Long-term debt
Derivative instrument - interest rate svap
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Natural resources
Capital projects
Debt service
Permanent funds and University funds:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Loansand other financial assstance:
Expendable
Other purposes
Unredtricted (deficit)

Total Net Assets

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESSTYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES ~ GOVERNMENT UNITS

$ 574361 $ 123403 $ 697,764 78,555

- 1,308 1,308 -

833,868 53,451 887,319 98,013

537,560 44,336 581,896 7,459

1,118 - 1,118 -

5371 249,273 254,644 -

1,195,608 - 1,195,608 -

285,264 79,886 365,150 -

- 2716 2716 -

89,645 137,890 227,535 -

53,287 26,272 79,559 16,382

447,574 103,183 550,757 86,766

165,193 16,823 182,016 19,521

4,188,849 838,541 5,027,390 306,696

76,363 5,370 81,733 2,741

- 879 879 -

311,476 442,661 754,137 14,961

- 17,607 17,607 -

6,819,580 2,835,831 9,655,411 1,342,165

- 22,880 22,880 -

165,596 55,549 221,145 11,599

7,373,015 3,380,777 10,753,792 1,371,466

11,561,864 4,219,318 15,781,182 1,678,162

16,940,512 1,483,416 18,423,928 96,100

37,409 - 37,409 -

125,779 - 125,779 -

4614 - 4614 _

508,085 - 508,085 -

20,237 - 20,237 -

10,563 - 10,563 -

666,162 186 666,348 -

6,738 12,596 19,334 21,948

166,024 220,354 386,378 -

3,804,355 186,426 3,990,781 -

- 76,882 76,882 435182

- - - 45537

(3,351,315) 809,475 (2,541,840) 315,504

$ 18,939,163 $ 2789335 $ 21728498 $ 914,271

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments $ 72,550
Receivables:
Pledgesreceivable 118,519
Other receivables 18,534
Total receivables 137,053
Investments:
Investmentsin securities 1,322,442
Other investments 52,272
Total investments 1,374,714
Net direct financing leases 119,483
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 371,729
Licenses 3,500
Other assets 47,908
Total Assets 2,126,937
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 37,534
Liability under endowment trust
agreements 290,923
Long-term debt 601,815
Deferred revenue 29,781
Other liabilities 38,564
Total Liabilities 998,617
NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted 772,273
Temporarily restricted 356,488
Unrestricted (deficit) (441)
Total Net Assets $ 1,128,320

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands) PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTSAND GRANTSAND
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities

General government $ 840,189 $ 189,175 $ 238,388 $ -
Health and welfare 11,992,408 135,345 9,355,416 -
Inspection and regulation 151,937 150,557 22,215 -
Education 5,331,848 71,414 1,381,229 -
Protection and safety 1,380,999 123,450 149,959 1,180
Transportation 808,967 108,877 161,992 776,813
Natural resources 213,339 68,684 48,271 579
Intergovernmental revenue sharing 2,473,881 - - -
Interest on long-term debt 350,483 - - -

Total Governmental Activities 23,544,051 847,502 11,357,470 778,572

Businesstype Activities:

Universities 3,629,568 1,752,509 1,181,070 53,571
Unempl oyment Compensation 1,069,531 439,074 524,638 -
Industrial Commission Special Fund 83,290 24,975 - -
Lottery 496,830 646,675 - -
Other 113,347 120,191 65 -
Total Businesstype Activities 5,392,566 2,983,424 1,705,773 53,571

Total Primary Government $ 28,936,617 $ 3,830,926 $ 13,063,243 $ 832,143

COMPONENT UNITS:

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority $ 44562 $ 38,014 $ 23,099 $ -
University of Arizona Health Network 1,166,960 1,160,468 - 2,345
Other Component Units 68,708 38,788 7,280 -

Total Component Units $ 1,280,230 $ 1,237,270 $ 30,379 $ 2,345

General Revenues:
Taxes
Sales
Income
Tobacco
Property
Motor vehicle and fuel
Other
Unregtricted investment earnings
Unregtricted grants and contributions
Gain on sale of trust land
Payments from State of Arizona
Miscellaneous
Contributions to permanent endowments
Tranders

Total General Revenues, Contributions, and Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning, asrestated

Net Assets - Ending

The Notesto the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE PRIMARY COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENT UNITS
$ (412,626) $ (412,626)
(2,501,647) (2,501,647)
20,835 20,835
(3,879,205) (3,879,205)
(1,106,410) (1,106,410)
238,715 238,715
(95,805) (95,805)
(2,473,881) (2,473,881)
(350,483) (350,483)
(10,560,507) (10,560,507)
(642,418) (642,418)
(105,819) (105,819)
(58,315) (58,315)
149,845 149,845
6,909 6,909
(649,798) (649,798)
(10,560,507) (649,798) (11,210,305)
16,551
(4,147)
(22,640)
(10,236)
6,296,151 55,309 6,351,460 12,171
3,706,698 - 3,706,698 -
317,369 - 317,369 -
30,656 - 30,656 -
1,581,909 - 1,581,909 -
522,510 - 522,510 15,991
79,190 49,501 128,691 9,208
40,678 3,468 44,146 239
125,479 - 125,479 -
- - - 78,385
167,604 155,757 323,361 1
- 3,270 3,270 -
(576,846) 576,846 - -
12,291,398 844,151 13,135,549 115,995
1,730,891 194,353 1,925,244 105,759
17,208,272 2,504,982 19,803,254 808,512
$ 18,939,163 $ 2789335 $ 21,728,498 914,271
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

TEMPORARILY PERMANENTLY
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL
REVENUES
Contributions $ 13943 % 143570 $ 22137 % 179,650
Rental revenue 49,963 - - 49,963
Salesand services 37,520 131 - 37,651
Net investment income (10ss) (6,373) (817) 3,923 (3,267)
Licensing revenue 1,281 - - 1,281
Other revenues 35,162 3,521 72 38,755
Net assets rel eased from regtrictions 162,431 (144,423) (18,008) -
Total Revenues 293,927 1,982 8,124 304,033
EXPENSES
Program services:
Paymentsto Universities 143,983 - - 143,983
Leasing related expenses 10,445 - - 10,445
Payments on behalf of Universities 16,410 - - 16,410
Other program services 6,489 - - 6,489
Management and general expenses 73,718 - - 73,718
Fundraising expenses 9,189 - - 9,189
Interest 27,357 - - 27,357
Depreciation and amortization 23,272 - - 23,272
Other expenses 13,490 21,178 41 34,709
Total Expenses 324,353 21,178 41 345,572
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets, before
extraordinary items (30,426) (19,196) 8,083 (41,539)
Extraordinary items (Primarily equity
transfers) 1,890 - - 1,890
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets, after
extraordinary items (28,536) (19,196) 8,083 (39,649)
Net Assets - Beginning 27,951 375,344 764,674 1,167,969
Trandfers 255 344 (599) -
Reclassification of funds with deficiencies (111) (4) 115 -
Net Assets - Ending $ (441) $ 356,488 $ 772273 $ 1,128,320

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF ARIZONA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Collateral investment pool
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Due from U.S. Government
Duefrom local governments
Due from other Funds
Inventories, at cost
Restricted assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Securities held in escheat
Endowment investments
Other

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other
current liabilities

Accrued liabilities

Obligations under securities|oan
agreements

Tax refunds payable

Dueto U.S. Government

Dueto local governments

Dueto others

Dueto other Funds

Unavailable deferred revenue

Unearned deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balances

TRANSPORTATION &
AVIATION PLANNING,

HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE&  ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL

FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL

$ 1892 $ - % 28 $ 937 $ 2,857

1,195,776 33,720 78,253 612,570 1,920,319

57,629 4,962 453,946 21,023 537,560

402,017 64,439 - 67,460 533,916

101 - 206,714 1 206,816

- 5,872 340,585 - 346,457

107,271 16,429 14,099 25,392 163,191

446,039 143,309 - 14,335 603,683

125,213 - - - 125,213

42,460 3,829 325 26,472 73,086

7,237 8,235 - 12 15,484

109 - - - 109

49,612 764,107 - 922,527 1,736,246

42,822 - - 10,056 52,878

2,608 - - - 2,608

47,586 - - - 47,586

- - 3,444,512 - 3,444,512

128 18,169 - - 18,297

$ 2528500 $ 1063071 $ 4538462 $ 1700785 $ 9,830,818

$ 229438 $ 162,488 $ 19519 $ 62736 $ 474,181

477,383 4,922 2 43,598 525,905

57,629 4,962 453,946 21,023 537,560

1,118 - - - 1,118

5,371 - - - 5,371

984,622 106,613 - 104,373 1,195,608

265,418 - 1 19,845 285,264

213,694 9,037 3,036 30,072 255,839

299,638 5,872 540,470 739 846,719

73,887 - 91,579 510 165,976

2,608,198 293,894 1,108,553 282,896 4,293,541

891 8,235 3,463,770 - 3,472,896

246,977 650,424 - 1,014,322 1,911,723

109,469 110,518 - 403,567 623,554

(437,035) - (33,861) - (470,896)

(79,698) 769,177 3,429,909 1,417,889 5,537,277

$ 2528500 $ 1063071 $ 4538462 $ 1,700,785 $ 9,830,818

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets are different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesare not financial resources and, therefore, are

not reported in the governmental funds.

Certain recelvablesrelated to reimbursements are not available at year end and, therefore, are

not reported in the governmental funds.

Certain recelvables are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are

deferred in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activitiesto
individual funds. The assetsand liabilities of theinternal servicefundsareincluded in

governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets.

The allocation of theinternal service fund accumulated net gain resultsin an amount dueto

busi ness-type activities, which is not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred issue costs are reported as current expendituresin the governmental funds. However,
deferred issue costs are amortized over thelife of the bonds and are included in the governmental

activitiesin the Statement of Net Assets.

Long-term debt is not due and payable from current financial resources and, therefore, is

not reported in the governmental funds. These amounts consist of:

Revenue bonds

Grant anticipation notes
Certificates of participation
Capital leases

Installment purchase contracts
Notes payable

Premium on debt

Deferred amounts on refundings

Accrued liabilitiesfor AHCCCS programmatic costs and reimbursements are not due and
payable from current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accrued interest on long-term obligationsis not due and payable from current financial
resources and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.

Other long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those liabilities consst of:

Compensated absences
Pollution remediation obligations

Net assets of governmental activities

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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$ 5,537,277

20,331,376

134,727

846,719

(126,671)

(43,048)

14,851
(3,593,420)
(335,230)
(2,495,825)
(391,184)
177
(55,666)
(396,465)

813 (7,267,154)

(270,370)

(36,926)
(151,036)

(30,582) (181,618)

$ 18,939,163




STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES

Taxes.

Sales

Income

Tobacco

Property

Motor vehicle and fuel

Other
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees, and permits
Earnings on investments
Salesand charges for services
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Gaming
Tobacco settlement
Proceeds from sale of trust land
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Health and welfare
Inspection and regulation
Education
Protection and safety
Trangportation
Natural resources

Intergovernmental revenue sharing

Debt sarvice:
Principal

Interest and other fiscal charges

Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfersin
Transfers out

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Capital lease and installment purchase contracts

Proceeds from notes and loans
Bondsissued

Refunding bonds i ssued
Refunding GANsissued

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Premium on debt issued

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Fund Balances - Ending

TRANSPORTATION &
AVIATION PLANNING,

HIGHWAY LAND OTHER
GENERAL MAINTENANCE&  ENDOWMENTS GOVERNMENTAL
FUND SAFETY FUND FUND FUNDS TOTAL

$ 5,612,685 216,281 $ - % 483904 $ 6,312,870
3,715,007 - - 75 3,715,082
63,838 - - 253,531 317,369
17,921 10,735 - 2,000 30,656
106,404 1,314,275 - 161,230 1,581,909
425,759 - - 96,751 522,510
10,830,480 937,982 - 75,446 11,843,908
84,140 94,575 3,973 294,656 477,344
17,820 6,389 111,123 54,723 190,055
104,527 821 63,717 19,741 188,806
30,856 - - 137,384 168,240
6,056 - - 79,479 85,535
101,067 - - - 101,067
- - 137,405 - 137,405
158,067 13,525 5,807 22,056 199,455
21,274,627 2,594,583 322,025 1,680,976 25,872,211
730,123 - - 108,653 838,776
11,774,277 - 5,366 249,887 12,029,530
43,987 - - 109,960 153,947
4,658,966 - 47,180 625,995 5,332,141
1,111,843 - 4471 234,937 1,351,251
51 724,205 - 21,050 745,306
88,636 - 1,065 112,976 202,677
1,468,757 1,004,768 - 10 2,473,535
98,590 15,903 - 271,534 386,027
75,265 214 - 269,424 344,903
48,826 550,912 73 160,905 769,716
20,099,321 2,305,002 58,155 2,165,331 24,627,809
1,175,306 289,581 263,870 (484,355) 1,244,402
286,107 1,760 - 533,205 821,072
(838,161) (331,701) (29,267) (124,649) (1,323,778)
- 1,815 - - 1,815
211 7,955 - - 8,166
- 9,541 - - 9,541
- - - 259,460 259,460
- - - 455,900 455,900
- - - 43,825 43,825
- - - (560,228) (560,228)
- - - 90,753 90,753
(551,843) (310,630) (29,267) 698,266 (193,474)
623,463 (21,049) 234,603 213,911 1,050,928
(703,161) 790,226 3,195,306 1,203,978 4,486,349
$ (79,698) 769,177 $ 3429909 $ 1,417,889 $ 5,537,277

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of assetsis allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. Also, infrastructure was adjusted to primarily

reflect reduction in construction in progress resulting from certain infrastructure projects
being reclassified from capital outlay to non-capital. Thisisthe amount by which capital

outlays exceeded depreciation and infrastructure adjustments in the current period.
Capital outlay
Infrastructure adjustment

Depreciation expense

The net revenue of the internal service funds is included with governmental activitiesin
the Statement of Activities.

Net change in certain revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not provide cu

rrent

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Sales taxes

Income taxes

Operating grants
Right-of-way lease revenue
Tobacco tax

Other revenue

Trust land sales are financed with long-term mortgages. In the Statement of Activities,

the gain on sale of trust land is reported, whereasin the governmental funds, the proceeds

from the collection of mortgage payments are reported. In fiscal year 2012, mortgage
payments exceeded gains resulting from current year land sales. In addition, accrued i

nterest

on land sales contracts are reported as revenues in the Statement of Activities but are not

reported as revenues in the governmental funds.

Excess of mortgage receipts over gain on sale of
Accrued interest on land sales contracts

land

Certain expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

AHCCCS accrued programmatic costs
Compensated absences

Pollution remediation obligations
Interest on long-term obligations
Other expenses

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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769,716
(67,693)
(121,542)

(16,719)

(8,384)

(21,153)
(369)
(4,106)
99

(11,926)
31,410

32,132
(3,585)
(9,021)
3,850
(345)

1,050,928

580,481

38,419

(50,632)

19,484

23,031

(Continued)



STATE OF ARIZONA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to the governmental funds; however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current
period, proceeds were received from:

Bonds issued (259,460)
Refunding bonds issued (455,900)
Refunding grant anticipation notes issued (43,825)
Proceeds from notes and loans (9,541)
Bond issuance costs 2,936
Premium on debt issued (90,753) (856,543)

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In the current
year, these amounts consit of :

Debt service principal 386,027
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 512,904
Debt premium/discount amortization 36,891
Amortization of bond issuance costs (1,525)
Amortization of deferred amount (408) 933,889

Some capital asset additions were financed through capital leases and installment purchase
contracts. Such financing arrangements are reported as an other financing source in the
governmental funds; however, these amounts are reported as liabilities in the Statement
of Net Assets. (8,166)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 1,730,891

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash with U.S. Treasury
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Restricted cash and pooled investments with
State Treasurer
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Other
Due from U.S. Government
Due from other Funds
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assts:
Redtricted assts:
Cash
Cash held by trustee
Investments held by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Loans and notes
Other
Investments
Endowment investments
Deferred outflow - interest rate swap
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable,
net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
239763 $ -8 64,800 - 2,865
- 4,114 - - -
1,747 - 4,606 56,303 21,527
- - - - 76,350
- - 44,336 - -
234,568 - - - -
- 89,019 4,763 - -
691 - 2,724 - 3
4,441 - - - 530
106,349 48,992 1,406 5,389 9,255
88,220 - - - 138
210,299 - - - 171
9,891 - - 3,126 6,388
15,775 - - - 661
11,744 142,125 122,635 64,818 117,888
10,431 - - - -
269,364 - - - -
122,437 - - - -
31,042 - - - -
12,267 - - - -
417,766 - 334,768 - -
305,682 - - - -
22,880 - - - -
20,434 - - 9,357 -
552,381 - 2,997 998 2,041
3,484,852 - 12,557 2,141 22,086
5,249,536 - 350,322 12,496 24,127
6,161,280 142,125 472,957 77314 142,015

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL

FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
307,428 $ -
4,114 -
84,183 398,499
76,350 -
44,336 -
234,568 -
93,782 -
3,418 -
4,971 -
171,391 7,990
88,358 7,157
210,470 2,752
19,405 3,548
16,436 5,818
1,359,210 425,764
10,431 -
269,364 -
122,437 -
31,042 -
12,267 -
752,534 -
305,682 -
22,880 -
29,791 -
558,417 109
3,521,636 62,652
5,636,481 62,761
6,995,691 488,525
(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT  COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 114,016 $ 4 % 3500 $ 4,148 1,735
Payable for securities purchased - - 1,308 - -
Accrued liabilities 28,091 22,073 - 124 3,163
Obligations under securities|oan agreements - - 44,336 - -
Dueto U.S. Government - 249,273 - - -
Dueto others 21,689 26,980 - 31,217 -
Due to component units - - - 2,716 -
Dueto other Funds - 175 1,711 28,199 1
Unearned deferred revenue 131,959 - 103 - 5,828
Current portion of accrued insurance losses - - 26,272 - -
Current portion of long-term debt 103,164 - - - 19
Current portion of other long-term liabilities 15,548 - - 292 983
Total Current Liabilities 414,467 298,505 77,230 66,696 11,729
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue 5,370 - - - -
Contracts payable - - - - 879
Accrued insurance losses - - 442,661 - -
Funds held for others 17,607 - - - -
Long-term debt 2,835,831 - - - -
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 22,880 - - - -
Other long-term liabilities 55,471 - - - 78
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,937,159 - 442,661 - 957
Total Liabilities 3,351,626 298,505 519,891 66,696 12,686
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,440,615 - 15,554 3,139 24,108
Redtricted for:
Capital projects 186 - - - -
Debt service 12,596 - - - -
Universities fund:
Expendable 220,354 - - - -
Nonexpendable 186,426 - - - -
Loans and other financial assstance:
Expendable - - - - 76,882
Unrestricted (deficit) 949,477 (156,380) (62,488) 7,479 28,339
Total Net Assets $ 2,809,654 $ (156,380) $ (46,934) $ 10,618 129,329

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Net assets of business-type activities

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
$ 123403 $ 100,179
1,308 -
53,451 668
44,336 -
249,273 .
79,886 .
2,716 -
30,086 383
137,890 32
26,272 53,287
103,183 -
16,823 11,779
868,627 166,328
5,370 -
879 -
442,661 311,476
17,607 .
2,835,831 .
22,880 -
55,549 137,392
3,380,777 143 368
7,249,404 615,196
1,483,416 62,761
186 -
12,596 .
220,354 .
186,426 .
76,882 -
766,427 (189,432)
$ 2746287 $ (126,671)
43,048
$ 2,789,335
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Salesand charges for services
Student tuition and fees, net of
scholarship allowances of $435,408
Auxiliary enterprises, net of
scholarship allowances of $19,000
Educational department
Lottery
Other
Unemployment assessments
Workers compensation assessments
Intergovernmental
Nongovernmental grants and contracts
Earnings on investments
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties
Settlement income
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cogt of salesand benefits
Scholarships and fellowships
Personal services
Contractual services
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance
Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (L 0ss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Share of State salestax revenues
Intergovernmental

Giftsand donations

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Investment income

Endowment earnings on investments
Other non-operating revenue
Digributions

Interest expense

Other non-operating expense

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (L oss) Before Contributions,
and Transfers

Capital grantsand contributions
Contributions to permanent endowments
Trangfersin

Transfers out

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets- Beginning

Total Net Assets- Ending

Change in net assets of enterprise funds

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES ~ COMPENSATION  SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
1325589 $ - -8 -3 -
322,333 - - - -
104,587 - - - -
- - - 646,675 -
- - - - 120,189
- 437,053 - - -
- - 21,863 - -
614,803 524,638 - - 65
116,656 - - - -
- - - - 2
- 2,021 - - -
- - 3,112 - -
37,042 90,926 - 173 2,336
2,521,010 1,054,638 24,975 646,848 122,592
964,616 1,058,179 78,366 459,259 69,646
200,069 - - - -
2,147,310 - - 5,881 26,671
- - - 15,214 8,478
232,827 - 1,371 270 1,717
- - - 40 510
- - - 1,466 6,269
3,544,822 1,058,179 79,737 482,130 113,291
(1,023,812) (3,541) (54,762) 164,718 9,301
55,309 - - - -
286,940 - - - -
177,996 - - - -
(144) - - - (©))
30,806 - 17,685 102 908
(15,325) - - - -
23,453 - 1,788 - 186
- - - (14,700) -
(115,344) (11,352) - - )
(8,358) - (3,553) - (47)
435,333 (11,352) 15,920 (14,598) 1,035
(588,479) (14,893) (38,842) 150,120 10,336
53,571 - - - 3,468
3,270 - - - -
724,892 - 6,000 - 16
- (1,901) - (150,018) (2,143)
193,254 (16,794) (32,842) 102 11,677
2,616,400 (139,586) (14,092) 10,516 117,652
2,800,654 $ (156,380) (46,934) $ 10618 $ 129,329

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Change in net assets of businesstype activities

The Notesto the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
$ 1,325,589 $ -
322,333 -
104,587 -
646,675 -
120,189 1,009,813
437,053 -
21,863 -
1,139,506 -
116,656 -
2 -
2,021 -
3,112 -
130,477 74
4,370,063 1,009,887
2,630,066 745,506
200,069 -
2,179,862 34,375
23,692 23,449
236,185 12,333
550 46,468
7,735 10,867
5,278,159 872,998
(908,096) 136,889
55,309 -
286,940 -
177,996 -
(247) 84
49,501 23
(15,325) -
25,427 744
(24,700) -
(126,705) (@)
(11,958) (158)
426,338 691
(481,758) 137,580
57,039 13,935
3,270 -
730,908 -
(154,062) (74,140)
155,397 77,375
2,590,890 (204,046)
$ 2,746,287 (126,671)
$ 155,397
38,956

$ 194,353



STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers

Receipts from assessments

Receipts from student tuition and fees

Receiptsfrom salesand services of auxiliary
enterprises

Receipts from sales and services of educational
departments

Receiptsfrominterfund services/ premiums

Receipts from grants and contracts

Receipts from student loans collected

Receipts from repayment of loansto local
governments

Receipts from settlement income

Paymentsto suppliers prize winners, claimants
insurance companies, or beneficiaries

Paymentsto employees

Paymentsto retirees

Paymentsfor scholarshipsand fellowships

Paymentsfor sudent loansissued

Other receipts

Other payments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from cugtodial funds
Receiptsfrom share of State salestax
Receipts from grants and contributions
Receipts from settlement income
Transfersfrom other Funds
Custodial funds disbursed
Grantsand contributions disbursed
Didributions
Interest paid on loan due to U.S. Government
Transfersto other Funds
Other receipts
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of capital asets

Proceeds from capital debt, ingtallment purchase
contracts, and capital leases

Receiptsfrom federal subsdy

Receipts from capital grantsand contributions

Receipts from insurance recoveries

Transfersfrom other Funds

Acquidtion and congtruction of capital assets

Interest paid on capital debt, ingallment purchase
contracts, and capital leases

Principal paid on capital debt, ingtallment
purchase contracts, and capital leases

Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION ~ SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
$ - % - $ -8 312574 $ 118,486
- 434,254 23,322 - -
1,291,397 - - - -
342,196 - - - -
114,548 - - - -
708,116 524,638 - - -
5,779 - - - -
- - - - 3,894
- - 3,112 - -
(985,158) (1,053,948) (27,598) (154,233) (69,415)
(2,191,897) - - (6,151) (44,138)
(193,241) - - - -
(6,834) - - - -
23,011 92,812 1,788 19,198 2,357
(6,700) - (131) - (3,304)
(898,783) (2,244) 493 171,388 7,880
269,828 - - - -
55,962 - - - -
1,334,127 - . . i
- - - - 185
679,967 - 6,000 - 16
(267,161) - - - -
(848,505) - - - -
- - - (14,700) -
- (8,237) - - -
- (2,239) - (144,160) (2,144)
21,583 - - - -
1,245,801 (10,476) 6,000 (158,860) (1,943)
242 - - - -
273,715 - - - -
9,745 - - - -
27,896 - - - -
21,362 - - - -
(481,389) - - (154) (2,184)
(115,754) - - - (6)
(102,441) - - - (111)
(366,624) - - (154) (2,301)

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare anintegral part of this Satement.
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TOTAL
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES -
INTERNAL
SERVICE FUNDS

431,060
457,576
1,291,397

342,196

114,548
1,232,754
5779

3,894
3,112

(2,290,352)
(2,242,186)
(193,241)
(6,834)
139,166
(10,135)

$ -

(780,916)
(35,195)
(12,160)

(721,266)

269,828
55,962
1,334,127
185
685,983
(267,161)
(848,505)
(14,700)
(8,237)
(148,543)
21,583

1,080,522

242

273,715
9,745
27,896

21,362
(483,727)

(115,760)

(102,552)

472

(3.187)

(369,079)

(1,826)

(Continued)
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest and dividends from invesments
Change in cash collateral received from securities

lending transactions
Purchase of investments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (l0s9)

Adjustmentsto reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization
Miscellaneous income (expense)

Net changesin asetsand ligbilities
(Increase) decrease in receivables net of

allowances

(Increase) in due from U.S. Government
(Increase) in due from other Funds
(Increase) decreasein inventories at cost
(Increase) in other asxts
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities
(Decrease) in dueto local governments
(Decrease) in dueto U.S. Government
Increase (decrease) in due to other Funds
(Decrease) in due to others
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase in accrued insurance |osses
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL
AND NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contribution of capital asetsto other Funds
Contribution of capital asetsfrom other Funds
Giftsand conveyances of capital asets
Aszts acquired through debt
(Loss) ondigposal of capital assets, net
Increase (decrease) in fair value of invesments
Amortization of bond discount and i ssuance costs
Amortization of bond premium
Amortization of deferred rent
Refinancing long-term debt
Total Noncash Investing, Capital and Non-capital
Financing Activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INDUSTRIAL
UNEMPLOYMENT ~ COMMISSION
UNIVERSITIES COMPENSATION ~ SPECIAL FUND LOTTERY OTHER
453,907 - 258,549 - -
44,119 - 13,451 86 862
- - 608 - (912)
(596,389) (31) (252,467) - -
(98,363) (31) 20,141 86 (50)
(117,969) (12,751) 26,634 12,460 3,586
639,274 16,865 87,108 43,843 97,156
$ 521,305 $ 4114 $ 113742 $ 56,303 $ 100,742
$ (1,023812) $ (3541) $ (54,762) $ 164,718 $ 9,301
232,827 - 1,371 270 1717
(12,098) - (212) - -
(13,713) 315 (309) 2,645 3,054
- - - - (65)
- - - - (59)
49 - - 948 (81)
(8,441) - - (309) (56)
(43,594) - (2,555) 1,117 87
(36,157) 1,416 - 1,999 (4,987)
- - - - (30)
- (123) - - -
- - 1711 - -
- (311) - - -
6,156 - 56 - (996)
- - 55,193 - -
- - - - (®)
$ (898,783) $ (2,244) $ 493§ 171,388 $ 7,880
$ -8 -8 -8 -8 -
- - - - 3,468
33,984 - - - -
18,274 - - - -
(7,817) - - - o)
(18,582) - 2,922 - -
(2,059) - - - -
1,558 - - - -
4,900 - - - -
281,965 - - - -
$ 312223 $ - $ 2022 $ - $ 3,464

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare anintegral part of this Satement.
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GOVERNMENTAL

TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE INTERNAL

FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS

712,456 .

58,518 21

(304) -

(848,887) -

(78,217) 21

(88,040) 102,831

884,246 295,668

$ 796206 $ 398,499

$ (908,096) $ 136,889

236,185 12,333

(12,310) 272

(8,008) 1,963

(65) (4,180)

(59) (776)

916 (231)

(8,806) (174)

(44,945) 12,112

(37,729) (816)

(30) -

(123) -

1711 (1,093)

(311) -

5,216 12

55,193 1,960

(5) 20,505

$ (721,266) $ 178,776

$ - $ (158)

3,468 13,935

33,984 -

18,274 .

(7,821) -

(15,660) .

(2,059) -

1,558 -

4,900 -

281,965 -

$ 318609 $ 13,777
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash
Cash and pooled invesments with
State Treasurer
Short-term investments

Receivables, net of allowances:
Accrued interest and dividends
Securities sold
Forward contracts receivable
Contributions
Court fees
Due from other Funds
Other

Total receivables

Investments, at fair value:
Temporary investments
Fixed income securities
Corporate stocks
Global tactical asset allocation
Real edate
Private equity
Opportunigtic invesments
Collateral investment pool
Other investments

Total invesments

Prepaid benefits

Due from others

Cugtodial securitiesin safekeeping

Other assets

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current
liabilities

Payable for securities purchased

Management fee payable

Obligation under securities
loan agreements

Forward contracts payable

Dueto U.S. Government

Dueto local governments

Due to others

Due to other Funds

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trugt for:
Pension benefits
Other post-employment benefits
Pool participants
Total Net Assets

The Notesto the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

PENSION AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT INVESTMENT AGENCY
TRUST FUNDS TRUSTS FUNDS

$ 161,037 - 62,002

- - 326,655

- - 3,210

73,662 2,782 1

493,371 - -

282,445 - -

51,356 - -

730 - -

25,353 - -

28,698 - 1

955,615 2,782 2

1,500,354 - -

6,270,904 3,223,798 -

19,543,468 . .

624,973 - -

2,269,864 - -

2,008,347 - -

1,223,657 - -

184,123 30,907 5,458

642,559 - -

34,268,249 3,254,705 5,458

190,732 - -

- - 82,907

- - 3,623,680

- - 2,228

4,683 - -

35,580,316 3,257,487 4,106,142

54,442 . .

546,039 4,191 .

- 175 -

184,123 30,907 5,458

249,501 - -

- - 13,809

- - 141,446

- - 3,945,429

25,353 - -

1,059,458 35,273 4,106,142

33,060,716 - -

1,460,142 - -

- 3,222,214 .

$ 34520858 $ 3,222,214 -
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STATE OF ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
PENSION AND OTHER

(Expressed in Thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Member contributions
Employer contributions
Federal Government reimbursement

Retrospective rate adjustment reimbursement

Member purchase of service credit
Court fees

Investment income:
Net increase (decrease) in fair value
of investments
Interest income
Dividends
Other investment income
Securities lending income
Total investment income

Lessinvestment expenses:
Investment activity expenses
Securities lending expenses

Net investment income

Capital share and individual account
transactions:
Shares sold
Reinvested interest income
Shares redeemed
Net capital share and individual
account transactions

Other additions
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Retirement, disability, and
survivor benefits

Refunds to withdrawing members,
including interest

Adminigtrative expense

Dividendsto investors

Other deductions

Total Deductions

Changein net assets held in trust for:
Pension benefits
Other post-employment benefits
Pool participants

Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT INVESTMENT
TRUST FUNDS TRUSTS

$ 1098438 $ -

1,293,091 -

19,978 -

15,495 -

66,671 -

8,380 -

(534,226) 2,828

215,132 16,649

346,123 -

420,221 -

6,847 279

454,097 19,756

169,096 2,117

916 189

284,085 17,450

- 4,440,304

- 13,925

- (4,921,506)

- (467,277)

3,203 -

2,789,931 (449,827)

3,125,480 -

245,500 -

41,523 -

- 16,988

6,835 -

3,419,338 16,988

(613,965) -

(15,442) -

- (466,815)

35,150,265 3,689,029

$ 34520858 $ 3,222,214

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Collateral investment pool
Short-term investments
Redtricted investmentsheld by trustee
Receivables, net of allowances:
Taxes
Interest
Loans and notes
Patient accounts receivable
Other
Due from primary government
Inventories, at cost
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assts:
Restricted cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer
Cash held by trustee
Investments
Investments held by trustee
Loans and notesreceivable, net of allowances
Other receivables, net of allowances
Investments
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Land and other non-depreciable
Buildings, equipment, and other depreciable
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Obligations under securities|oan agreements
Current portion of accrued insurance losses
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of other long-term liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned deferred revenue
Accrued insurance losses
Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Loans and other financial assistance
Other
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

WATER UNIVERSITY

INFRASTRUCTURE ~ OF ARIZONA OTHER
FINANCE HEALTH COMPONENT
AUTHORITY NETWORK UNITS TOTAL

$ - 62,715 24,604 $ 87,319

177,318 - 77,584 254,902

8,286 - - 8,286

4,743 - 2716 7,459

- 98,330 - 98,330

- 13,284 4,383 17,667

. . 5,524 5,524

10,485 - - 10,485

- - 272 272

- 125,548 - 125,548

6,436 89,701 4,093 100,230

- - 2,716 2,716

- 17,416 - 17,416

- - 1,176 1,176

207,268 206,994 123,068 737,330

- - 10,465 10,465

- - 21,300 21,300

- 80,788 - 80,788

- 26,571 6,551 33,122

1,130,215 - 2,963 1,133,178

- 7,038 - 7,038

115,773 - - 115,773

4,553 5,560 21,889 32,002

- 36,530 7,768 44,298

205 734,002 37,162 771,369

(119) (384,971) (9,140) (394,230)

1,250,627 505,518 98,958 1,855,103

1,457,895 912,512 222,026 2,592,433

- 61,282 17,273 78,555

10,765 86,716 532 98,013

4,743 - 2716 7,459

- 16,382 - 16,382

46,470 27,715 12,581 86,766

88 19,433 - 19,521

62,066 211,528 33,102 306,696

2,741 - - 2,741

- 14,961 - 14,961

917,994 313,914 110,257 1,342,165

- 11,599 - 11,599

920,735 340,474 110,257 1,371,466

982,801 552,002 143,359 1,678,162

- 65,946 30,154 96,100

- - 21,948 21,948

412,526 - 22,656 435,182

- 24,318 21,219 45537

62,568 270,246 (17,310) 315,504

$ 475004 $ 360,510 78667 $ 914,271

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands) PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTSAND GRANTSAND

EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Water Infrastructure Finance Authority $ 44562 % 38014 $ 23099 $ -
University of Arizona Health Network 1,166,960 1,160,468 - 2,345
Other Component Units 68,708 38,788 7,280 -
Total $ 1,280,230 $ 1,237,270 $ 30,379 $ 2,345

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Sales
Other
Unrestricted investment earnings
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Payments from State of Arizona
Miscellaneous
Changein Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning, as restated

Net Assets - Ending

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.



NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGESIN NET ASSETS

WATER UNIVERSITY
INFRASTRUCTURE OF ARIZONA OTHER
FINANCE HEALTH COMPONENT
AUTHORITY NETWORK UNITS TOTAL
16551 $ - % - % 16,551
- (4,147) - (4,147)
- - (22,640) (22,640)
- - 12,171 12,171
- - 15,991 15,991
7,695 707 806 9,208
- - 239 239
- - 78,385 78,385
- - 1 1
24,246 (3,440) 84,953 105,759
450,848 363,950 (6,286) 808,512
475004 $ 360510 $ 78667 $ 914,271
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2012
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent investments

Receivables.
Pledgesreceivable
Other receivables

Total receivables

Investments:
Investmentsin securities
Other investments

Total investments

Net direct financing leases

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Licenses

Other assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Liability under endowment trust
agreements
Long-term debt
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Permanently restricted
Temporarily restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Assets

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.

ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONA STATE  UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCE COMPONENT
FOUNDATION  FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL
$ 8221 $ 43539 $ 2665 $ 18,125 72,550
102,987 3,622 - 11,910 118,519
2,801 - 169 15,474 18,534
105,878 3,622 169 27,384 137,053
579,005 588,477 16,800 138,070 1,322,442
43,568 4,066 474 4,164 52,272
622,663 592,543 17,274 142,234 1,374,714
25,655 - 44,925 48,903 119,483
15,670 12,937 207,251 135,871 371,729
- - - 3,500 3,500
17,560 2,955 4,956 22,437 47,908
795,647 655,596 277,240 398,454 2,126,937
9,248 3,003 7,854 17,429 37,534
90,133 180,231 - 20,559 290,923
75,690 - 321,334 204,791 601,815
3,636 - - 26,145 29,781
28,717 - 167 9,680 38,564
207,424 183,234 329,355 278,604 998,617
363,823 361,125 - 47,325 772,273
225,375 101,634 - 29,479 356,488
(975) 9,603 (52,115) 43,046 (441)
$ 588223 $ 472362 $ (52,115) $ 119,850 1,128,320
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STATE OF ARIZONA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
UNIVERSITIES - AFFILIATED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(Expressed in Thousands)

ARIZONA CAPITAL

ARIZONA STATE UNIVERSITY FACILITIES OTHER
UNIVERSITY OF ARIZONA FINANCE COMPONENT
FOUNDATION FOUNDATION CORPORATION UNITS TOTAL
REVENUES
Contributions $ 92,735 % 64,156 $ - 22759 % 179,650
Rental revenue 972 - 17,737 31,254 49,963
Salesand services 20,705 - 8,992 7,954 37,651
Net investment income (10ss) (6,361) 1,932 124 1,038 (3,267)
Licensing revenue - - - 1,281 1,281
Other revenues 4,101 9,285 8,505 16,864 38,755
Total Revenues 112,152 75,373 35,358 81,150 304,033
EXPENSES
Program services:
Paymentsto Universities 59,307 68,680 273 15,723 143,983
Leasing related expenses - - - 10,445 10,445
Payments on behalf of Universities - 11,996 - 4,414 16,410
Other program services - - - 6,489 6,489
Management and general expenses 25,790 4,357 10,199 33,372 73,718
Fundraising expenses - 6,340 - 2,849 9,189
Interest 2,151 - 14,666 10,540 27,357
Depreciation and amortization 1,784 - 13,568 7,920 23,272
Other expenses 10,779 - 562 23,368 34,709
Total Expenses 99,811 91,373 39,268 115,120 345,572
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets, before
extraordinary items 12,341 (16,000) (3,910) (33,970) (41,539)
Extraordinary item (Primarily equity
transfers) - - 83 1,807 1,890
Increase (decrease) in Net Assets, after
extraordinary items 12,341 (16,000) (3,827) (32,163) (39,649)
Net Assets - Beginning 575,882 488,362 (48,288) 152,013 1,167,969
Net Assets - Ending $ 588,223 $ 472,362 (52,115) 119,850 $ 1,128,320

The Notesto the Financial Statementsare an integral part of this statement.
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INOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the State of Arizona (the State) conform to U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (U.S.
GAAP) applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The State is a general purpose government. The accompanying financia statements present the activities of the State (the
primary government) and its component units. Component Units footnote disclosures are presented in Note 14 — Discretely
Presented Component Unit Disclosures.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State is considered to be financially accountable, or organizations that
raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of the State. Blended component units, although legally separate entities,
are in substance, part of a government’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary
government. Discretely presented component units of the State, except for component units affiliated with the State's
Universities, arereported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statementsto emphasizethey are legally separate
from the State. Because the component units affiliated with the Universities follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements, these financial statements have been reported on separate pages foll owing the respective counterpart financial
statements of the State. For financial reporting purposes, only the statement of financial position and the statement of activities
for component units affiliated with the Universities are included in the State's financial statements, as required by the GASB.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity (GASB 14) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the
ability of the State to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State.

In addition, GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units (GASB 39) requires
that legally separate, tax-exempt entities that meet all of the following criteria should be discretel y presented as component units:
(1) The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or aimost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government, its component units, or its constituents, (2) The primary government, or its component units, is entitled
to, or hasthe ahility to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization, and
(3) The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or hasthe ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

The State reports the following blended component units:

The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, pension plan that benefits employees of the
State and participating political subdivisions and school digricts. The ASRS is administered in accordance with provisions of
Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS) Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles2 and 2.1. The ASRS is governed by a nine-member board that is
appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate to serve three-year terms. Complete financial statements may be obtained
from the ASRS's administrative office at P.O. Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-3910, (602) 240-2000, or its website at
WWW.8zasr'S.gov.

The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) is an agent, multi-employer public employee retirement system that
benefits public safety employees of certain State and local governments. The PSPRS is jointly administered by the Board of
Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) and 237 local boards according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. The
Board of Trustees is a seven-member board appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate to serve a fixed five-year
term. Each eligible group participating in the system has a five-member local board. In genera, all members serve a fixed four-
year term. Complete financia statements may be obtained from the PSPRS's administrative office at 3010 East Camelback
Road, Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ 85016-4416, (602) 255-5575, or its website at www.psprs.com.
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The Elected Officials Retirement Plan (EORP) is a cost-sharing, multi-employer public employee retirement plan that benefits
elected officials and judges of certain State, county, and local governments. The Board of Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) of
the PSPRS administers the EORP plan according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 3. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from the PSPRS's adminidrative office at 3010 East Camelback Road, Suite 200, Phoenix, AZ
85016-4416, (602) 255-5575, or its website at www.psprs.com.

The Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) is an agent, multi-employer public employee retirement plan that benefits
prison and jail employees of certain State, county, and local governments. The Board of Trustees (formerly Fund Manager) of the
PSPRS and 26 local boards administer the CORP plan according to the provisions of ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 6.
Complete financial satements may be obtained from the PSPRS' s administrative office at 3010 East Camelback Road, Suite 200,
Phoenix, AZ 85016-4416, (602) 255-5575, or its website at www.psprs.com.

The State reports the following discretely presented component units:
Major Component Units:

University of Arizona Health Network and Subsidiaries (UAHN) — The UAHN, formerly known as UA Healthcare, Inc., an
Arizona not-for-profit corporation, controls the University Medical Center Corporation and subsidiaries (UMC) and University
Physicians Healthcare and subsidiaries (UPH). The UAHN is comprised of (i) a Hospital Division, which encompasses the
University of Arizona Medical Center — University Campus, the University of Arizona Medical Center — South Campus, and
more than 40 physician offices and clinics across southern Arizona, (ii) a faculty-physician Practice Plan Division known as the
University of Arizona Physicians, which is the practice plan of the faculty-physicians of the University of Arizona College of
Medicine, (iii) a Health Plans Division known as the University of Arizona Health Plans, which offers health care insurance
plans, and (iv) the University Medical Center Foundation, which provides philanthropic support to the UAHN. The UAHN is
governed by a seventeen-member board of directors whose appointments are approved by the Arizona Board of Regents.
Complete financial statements may be obtained in writing from the UAHN at: The University of Arizona Health Network, Attn:
Administration, 1501 N. Campbell Ave., Tucson, AZ 85724.

Water Infrastructure Finance Authority (WIFA) — The WIFA is authorized to administer the Clean Water Revolving Fund. The
Clean Water Revolving Fund was created pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, which required the State to
establish the Clean Water Revolving Fund to accept federal capitalization grants for publicly owned wastewater treatment
projects. The WIFA has also entered into an agreement with the Environmental Protection Agency to administer the Drinking
Water Revolving Fund pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act. The WIFA is governed by a twelve-member board of directors.
The seven Governor appointed directors serve staggered terms of five years and serve at the pleasure of the Governor. Complete
financial statements may be obtained from the WIFA’s administrative offices at 1110 West Washington Street, Suite 290,
Phoenix, AZ 85007, (602) 364-1324.

Non-major Component Units:

Greater Arizona Development Authority (GADA) — The purpose of the GADA is to provide cost-effective access to capital for
local communities, certain special districts, and tribal governments for public infrastructure projects. The GADA was created by
an Act of the Arizona Legidature in 1997 and is a body, corporate and palitic, of the State. The GADA is governed by a nine-
member Board of Directors consisting of four State of Arizona agency heads and five members, one of which shall be a
representative of atribal nation in Arizona, appointed by the Governor of the State. Members appointed by the Governor serve
staggered five-year terms. The GADA fund was originally capitalized with Genera Fund appropriations and requests for
additional capitalization of the GADA must be approved by the Arizona Legislature. Complete financia statements may be
obtained from the GADA’s administrative office at 1110 West Washington Street, Suite 290, Phoenix, AZ 85007, (602) 364-
1324.

Rio Nuevo Multipurpose Facilities Digtrict (Rio Nuevo) — The Rio Nuevo was established in 1999 with the passage of
Proposition 400 by the voters in the Cities of Tucson and South Tucson. Under applicable ARS, the Didtrict can utilize tax
incremental financing to help develop multipurpose facilities in the downtown Tucson area. The Rio Nuevo is governed by a
nine-member board of directors, with five members appointed by the Governor, two members appointed by the President of the
Senate, and the remaining two members appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives. All board of directors can be
removed at will. Complete financial satements may be obtained from Beach Fleischman & Co. PC, c/o Jim Lovelace, 1985 E.
River Rd. #201, Tucson, AZ 85718-7176, (520) 321-4600.

-70-


www.psprs.com
www.psprs.com

STATE OF ARIZONA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2012

Arizona Power Authority (APA) — The APA purchases the State’ s allocation of power produced at the federally owned Boulder
Canyon Project hydropower plant and resells it to Arizona entities that are eligible purchasers under federal and state laws. The
APA is governed by a commission of five members appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate. The term of office
of each member is six years and the members select a chairman and vice-chairman from among their membership for aterm of
two years. All revenue bonds issued by the APA must be approved by the State Certification Board. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from the APA’s administrative offices at 1810 West Adams Street, Phoenix, AZ 85007-2679, (602)
368-4265.

Arizona Commerce Authority (ACA) — The ACA is charged with the following responsibilities: job creation and expansion of
capital investment through business attraction, expansion and retention, including business incubation and entrepreneurship;
creation, monitoring, and execution of a comprehensive economic and workforce strategy; management and administration of
economic development and workforce programs; providing statewide marketing leadership; utilization of all means necessary,
prudent and practical to integrate private sector-based innovation, flexibility, focus and responsiveness, and advancement of
public policy to meet the State's economic development objectives. The ACA is governed by a nineteen member board of
directors consisting of the Governor serving as Chairperson, a Chief Executive Officer, and seventeen members consisting of
private sector business leaders serving staggered three-year terms, of which, nine are appointed by the Governor, four are
appointed by the President of the Senate, and the other four are appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives. The
ACA isallocated State Genera Fund withholding tax revenuesin each fiscal year according to ARS 843-409. Complete financial
statements may be obtained from the ACA’s adminigrative office at 333 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900, Phoenix, AZ 85004,
(602) 845-1200.

Component units of the State affiliated with the Universities are legally separate, tax-exempt organizations controlled by separate
boards of directors that meet the criteria established in GASB 39, with the exception of the Collegiate Golf Foundation,
University Public Schoals, Inc., and Campus Research Corporation (CRC). The Collegiate Golf Foundation and University
Public Schools, Inc. are included because each is a legally separate organization that the State believes would be misleading to
exclude due to its financial relationship or close affiliation to the State. The CRC is included because the U of A approves the
budget; thus fiscal dependency exists.

The following discretely presented component units of the State affiliated with the Universities are reported as major component
units:

Arizona State University Foundation (ASU Foundation) — The ASU Foundation's resources are disbursed at the discretion of the
Foundation's independent board of directors, in accordance with donor directions and Foundation policy.

Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (ACFFC) — The ACFFC provides facilities for either use by students of ASU or
ASU itsdf.

University of Arizona Foundation (U of A Foundation) — The U of A Foundation supports the U of A through various fund-
raising activities and contributes fundsto the U of A in support of various programs.

The following discretely presented component units of the State affiliated with the Universities are reported as non-major
component units:

Arizona State University Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, and Sun Angel Endowment — These three component units
of the State affiliated with the Universities receive funds primarily through donations, dues, and/or affinity partners and contribute
fundsto ASU for support of various programs.

Arizona State University Research Park, Inc. (ASU Research Park) — ASU Research Park manages a research park to promote
and support research activities in coordination with ASU.

Mesa Student Housing, LLC and Downtown Phoenix Student Housing, LLC — These component units of the State affiliated with
the Universities provide facilities for use by students of ASU.

Collegiate Golf Foundation — This component unit of the State affiliated with the Universities operates an ASU-owned golf
course.
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University Public Schoals, Inc. (UPSI) — The UPSI operates schools designed to be on the forefront of education innovation and
improvement, with the goal of developing educational models that can be scaled across the State and nation to improve the
academic achievement of children.

University of Arizona Alumni Association (U of A Alumni Association) — The U of A Alumni Association was established to
servethe U of A and its graduates, former students, and friends by attracting, organizing, and encouraging them to advance the U
of A's missions - teaching, research, and public service.

University of ArizonaLaw College Association (Law Association) — The Law Association was established to provide support and
financial assistance to the College of Law at the U of A. The Law Association funds provide support to the College on many
levels, from endowed student scholarships to named faculty professorships.

University of Arizona Campus Research Corporation (CRC) — The CRC was established to assist the U of A in the acquisition,
improvement, and operation of the U of A Science and Technology Park (Park) and related properties. The CRC currently leases
from the U of A the remaining 67% of building space of the Park not leased to the Arizona Research Park Authority. The CRC is
responsible for assisting in the development of the presently undeveloped portions of the Park and for subleasing unoccupied
space, newly devel oped space, and space now occupied by IBM or its subtenants once the current subleases expire. TheU of A is
responsible for payment of operational expenses associated with the space occupied by the U of A departments, offices, and
programs.

Northern Arizona University Foundation, Inc. (NAU Foundation) — The NAU Foundation receives gifts and bequests, administers
and invests securities and property, and disburses payments to and on behalf of NAU for advancement of its mission.

Northern Arizona Capital Facilities Finance Corporation (NACFFC) — The NACFFC was established for the purpose of
acquiring, devel oping, constructing, maintaining, and operating student housing and other capital facilities and equipment for the
use and benefit of NAU's students.

Complete financial statements for each of the aforementioned component units, except for the U of A Foundation, may be
obtained at the following addresses:

ASU Foundation, ACFFC, ASU Alumni Association, Sun Angel Foundation, Sun Angel Endowment, ASU Research Park,
Collegiate Golf Foundation, Mesa Student Housing, LLC, Downtown Phoenix Student Housing, LLC, and the UPSl — Arizona
State University, Financia Services, P.O. Box 875812, Tempe, AZ 85287-5812 or (480) 965-3601

U of A Alumni Association —Alumni Association, The University of Arizona, P.O. Box 210109, Tucson, AZ 85721-0109

Law Association — Law College Association, James E. Rogers College of Law at the University of Arizona, 1201 E. Speedway
Blvd., Tucson, AZ 85721-0176

CRC — The University of Arizona Science and Technology Park, 9030 South Rita Road, Suite 302, Tucson, AZ 85747
NAU Foundation and NACFFC — Northern Arizona University, Comptroller's Office, P.O. Box 4069, Flagstaff, AZ 86011

The financial statements of the U of A Foundation are not publicly available. For information regarding the U of A Foundation's
financial statements, contact the U of A Comptroller at the following address: University of Arizona, Financial Services, P.O.
Box 3310, Tucson, AZ 85722-3310.

Related Organizations

Related organizations are legally separate entities for which the State is not considered to be financially accountable, and that do
not meet the criteria established by GASB 14 and GASB 39. The State's accountability for these organizations does not extend
beyond making the appointments, nor are the economic resources accessible to the State. As a result, financia activity for the
organi zations described bel ow isnot included in the State’ s financial statements.

Arizona Health Facilities Authority (the Authority) — ARS 836-482 established the Authority to issue tax-exempt bonds and 1oans
for the purpose of improving health care for Arizona residents by providing less expensive financing for health care facilities.
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Proceeds from bond issues are loaned to various qualifying nonprofit health care organizations. The health care organizations
reimburse the Authority for expenses for issuance of the bonds, pay fees of the Authority, and make payments under the loans for
the benefit of the holders of the bonds. The Authority is governed by a seven-member board of directors that is appointed by the
Governor and approved by the Senate. The directors serve staggered terms of seven years, and can be removed for cause or at
will by the Governor with the consent of the Senate. The State cannot abrogate the rights of the Authority until al bonds,
together with the interest thereon, are fully paid and discharged and all agreements are fully performed.

Arizona International Development Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-4502 established the Authority to facilitate the
development of international trade or commerce between Arizona and other countries. The Authority is governed by a seven-
member board of directors appointed by the Governor and approved by the Senate for five-year terms, and can be removed only
for cause.

Arizona Sports and Tourism Authority (the Authority) — ARS 85-802 established the Authority to construct, finance, furnish,
maintain, improve, operate, market, and promote the use of a multipurpose facility and do all things necessary or convenient to
accomplish those purposes. The Authority may issue revenue bonds in such principal amounts to accomplish the above stated
purposes. The Authority is governed by a nine-member board of directors of which five are appointed by the Governor and
approved by the Senate and two members each by the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House. The directors serve
terms of five years, may be re-appointed for one full subsequent term, and can be removed only for cause.

Arizona Housing Finance Authority (the Authority) — ARS 841-3902 established the Authority to issue bonds for residentia
dwelling units and multifamily residential rental projects in rural areas. The Authority may also establish mortgage credit
certificate programs to finance residential dwelling units in rural areas. The Authority shall notify a city, town, county, tribal
government, or existing corporation (as defined in ARS 835-701) that a multifamily residential rental project is planned for its
jurisdiction and, before proceeding, shall obtain written consent from the governing body of the city, town, county, or tribal
government. The Authority isgoverned by a seven-member board of directorsthat is appointed by the Governor and approved by
the Senate. The directors serve terms of seven years, and can be removed only for cause.

State Compensation Fund — ARS §23-981 established the State Compensation Fund to provide insurance to employers for
workers compensation, occupational disease compensation, and medica, surgical, and hospital benefits. The State
Compensation Fund is governed by a board of directors that consists of five members appointed by the Governor for staggered
terms of five years. Annually, the Governor appoints a chairman from among the board members.

Joint Ventures

Asdescribed in Note 11, the U of A participatesin joint ventures. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the financia activities of these
joint ventures are not included in the State' s financial statements.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial statements. The government-wide
statements focus on the State as a whole, while the fund financia statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides
valuable information that can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of
the information.

Government-wide statements provide information about the primary government and its component units. The statements
include a statement of net assets and a statement of activities. These statements report the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. They also distinguish between the governmenta and business-type activities of the
State and between the State and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the Stat€’ s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets.
Both the governmental and business-type activities are presented on a consolidated basis by column.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the
State’ s governmental activities, and its different business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
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with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular program or function. The State does not allocate
indirect expenses to programs or functions.

Program revenues include:

i chargesto customers or applicantsfor goods, services, privileges provided, and fines or forfeitures
i operating grantsand contributions
i capital grants and contributions, including specia assessments

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources and all taxes, are reported as
general revenues.

Interfund bal ances have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statementsto the extent that they occur within either
the governmental or business-type activities. Balances between governmental and business-type activities are presented as
interna balances and are eliminated in the total column. Revenues and expenses associated with reciprocal transactions within
governmental or within business-type activities have not been eliminated.

Fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. The emphasis of fund financial statementsison major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are
aggregated and reported as non-major funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated and reported by fund type.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, adminidrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The State reports the following major governmenta funds:

The General Fund — is the Stat€'s primary operating fund. It accounts for al financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Transportation and Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Fund — accounts for all financial transactions
applicable to the general operations of the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT). The ADOT builds and maintains the
State’ s highway system and the Grand Canyon Airport. The fund primarily receives revenues from motor vehicle and fuel taxes
and federal grants.

The Land Endowments Fund — holds lands granted to the State by the Federal government for the benefit of public schools and
other public ingtitutions. Principal is maintained intact and investment earnings and lease revenues are distributed to beneficiaries
in accordance with State statute.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Universities — account for transactions of the State’ s three universities, which comprise the Stat€’ s university system.

Unemployment Compensation — pays claims for unemployment to eigible recipients from employer contributions and
reimbursements.

The Industrial Commission Special Fund (Special Fund) — accounts for the payment of workers' compensation claims that are not
covered by the State Compensation Fund, the Risk Management Division of the Department of Administration, private insurance
carriers, and self-insured employers.

The Lottery — accounts for the activities of the Arizona State L ottery.
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Additionaly, the State reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds — account for insurance coverage, employee benefits, automotive maintenance and operation, highway
equipment rental's, and data processing and telecommunication services provided to State agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis.
It isthe policy of the State to classify immateria proprietary fund activities in governmenta funds. This policy helps to reduce
the number of funds reported in the financial statements to the minimum amount needed. These funds alocate a fixed rate
payroll processing charge among all agencies, allocate postage and mailing costs among all agencies, or arrange for the sale of the
State’ s office equipment and motorized vehicles at public auctions.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds — account for the activities of the ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP,
for which the State acts as a trustee. These retirement and other post-employment benefit plans accumulate resources to pay
pension, health insurance premium subsidies, and long-term disability benefits of State employees and employees of other
governmental entities participating in the plans.

Investment Trust Funds — account for transactions by local governments and palitical subdivisions that elect to participate in the
State Treasurer’ sinvestment pools. The Treasurer acts as trustee for the original deposits made into the investment pools.

Agency Funds — account for the receipt and disbursement of various taxes, deposits, deductions, property collected by the State,
and payment of the health insurance subsidy by the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, where the State acts as an agent for
distribution to other governments and organizations.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. However, the agency funds are custodial in nature and do not have a
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when therelated cash flowstake place. Grantsand donations are recognized as revenues as soon as all eigibility requirements
the provider imposed have been met.

Governmental fundsin the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The State
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 31 days after year-
end, except for the Department of Economic Security (DES) revenue, reported in the General Fund, and the Transportation and
Aviation Planning, Highway Maintenance and Safety Major Fund, as well as certain non-major governmental funds administered
by the DES and the ADOT, which consider revenues to be available if collected within 60 days after year-end. Those revenues
susceptible to accrual are federal reimbursements, highway user revenue tax, and state salestax. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. Genera capital asset acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital |eases are reported as
other financing sources.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, the State considers
restricted and unrestricted amounts to have been spent in that order.

The Stat€’s business-type activities and enterprise funds follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before
November 30, 1989; Accounting Principles Board Opinions; and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements
conflict with GASB pronouncements. The State has chosen the option not to follow FASB Statements and Interpretations i ssued
after November 30, 1989.

D. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

On the Statement of Cash Flows, the amount reported as “ Cash and Cash Equivalents’ is equal to the total of the amounts on the
Statement of Net Assets (unrestricted/restricted) “Cash”, “Cash with U.S. Treasury”, “Cash and pooled investments with State
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Treasurer”, “Cash held by trustee” and “Collateral investment pool”. For purposes of the Statement of Cash Hows, the State
considers only those highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.

i Cash (not with State Treasurer) — includes un-deposited receipts, petty cash, bank accounts, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and demand deposits with banking ingtitutions other than the State Treasurer.

i Cash with U.S. Treasury — consists of unemployment compensation contributions from Arizona employers that are deposited
in atrust fund maintained by the United States Treasury.

i Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer — consists of a centralized management of most State cash resources
maintained by the State Treasurer. From the perspective of the various State funds, the pool functions as both a cash
management pool and a demand deposit account. The operations and investments of the State Treasurer’s pooled
investments are described in Note 2.

i Cash held by trustee — consists of capital projects and bond debt service funds invested by the trustee in accordance with the
applicable financing indenture, generally limited to United States Treasury securities and other Federal agency securities,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and money market funds.

i Collateral investment pool — consists of cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made
with that cash. The State records the collateral received as an asset. A corresponding liability is also recorded for such
securities lending transactions.

2. Investment Valuation

Investments maintained by the State Treasurer are reported at fair value using JP Morgan prices, as determined by independent,
industry recognized data vendors who provide values that are either exchange based or matrix based. Equities are priced utilizing
the primary exchange closing price. In the absence of a closing price, the bid price will be utilized. 1f no pricing source is
available, the cost price or last available price from any source will be utilized. All bonds are priced using an evaluated bid, the
most recent mid/bid price or the bid price, except securities with aremaining maturity of 90 days or less are priced at amortized
cost (amortizing premium/accreting discount on a straight-line to maturity method). The evaluated bid is based on a compilation
of primary observable market information or a broker quote in a non-active market. 1f no pricing source is available, the cost
price or the last available price from any source will be utilized.

The ASRS publicly traded investments are reported at fair value determined by the custodial agents. The agents' determination
of fair values includes, among other things, using pricing services or prices quoted by independent brokers at current exchange
rates. ASRS derivative instruments, which consist of futures, forward contracts, options, swaps, rights, and warrants, are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of derivative insruments are reported as net increase (decrease) in fair value of
investments. Private real estate, private equity, and opportunistic partnership investments are valued based on the partnerships
March 2012 financial statements adjusted for cash flows through June 30, 2012. Short-term investments are reported at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates fair value. For investments where no readily ascertainable fair value exists, the ASRS, in
consultation with its investment advisors, has determined the fair values for the individual investments based on anticipated
maturity dates and current interest rates commensurate with the investment’s degree of risk. Security transactions and any
resulting gains or losses are accounted for on atrade date basis. Net investment income (loss) includes net increase (decrease) in
the fair value of investments, interest income, dividend income, real estate, private equity, and opportunistic investments income,
and total investment expense. This includes investment management, real estate, private equity, and opportunistic investment
expenses and al other significant investment related costs.

For the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, investments are reported at fair market value. Short term investments are reported at
cost plus accrued interest. Equity securities are valued at the last reported sales price. Fixed income securities are valued using
the last reported sales price or the estimated fair market value as determined by the fixed income broker/dealers plus accrued
interest. Investments in hedge funds are valued monthly at the last reported valuations. Limited partnership investmentsin credit
opportunities, private equity, real assets, and real estate are valued on a quarterly or monthly basis at last reported valuations
adjusted by any subsequent cash flows. Joint venture real estate investments are reported at fair market value using either
appraisals or manager assessment to estimate the fair market value. Appraisals will be performed every three years on arolling
schedul e unless circumstances warrant otherwise. Investment income is recognized as earned.
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E. TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable include amounts owed by taxpayers for prior periods including assessments for underpayments, penalties, and
interest. In the government-wide financial satements, a corresponding amount is recorded as revenue using the accrual basis of
accounting. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is recorded using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The remainder isrecorded as deferred revenues.

The income tax receivable is composed of individua and corporate estimated payments, withholding payments, and payments
with final returns and assessments that relate to income earned through June 30, 2012. Sales and motor vehicle and fuel tax
receivables represent amounts that are earned by the State in the fiscal period ended June 30, 2012, but not collected until the
following month.

F. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption in all funds and merchandise intended for sale to customers in
the proprietary funds. Inventories are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out method, weighted average, or lower of cost or
market. In the governmental funds, inventories are accounted for using the consumption method. Under this method, inventories
arerecorded as expenditures asthey are used.

G. PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Real property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August and become due and payable in two equal installments.
The first installment is due on the first day of October and becomes delinquent after the first business day of November. The
second installment is due on the first day of March of the next year and becomes delinquent after the first business day of May.
A lien attaches on thefirst day of January preceding assessment and levy.

H. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capitd assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or, if donated, at the estimated fair market value at the date received.
Interest incurred during the construction of capital assetsis only capitalized in the proprietary funds.

Most capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. However, the State reports most infrastructure assets using
the modified approach, as provided by GASB Statement No. 34. Under this approach, rather than being depreciated, costs to
maintain and preserve these assets are expensed. This approach is discussed further in the Required Supplementary Information
portion of this report. The State has adopted a general policy for capitalization thresholds, depreciation, and estimated useful
lives of capital assets. In addition, the State has approved alternative policies for some State agencies.

Depreciable capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis. Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values at which asset
acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts) and estimated useful lives of capital assets being depreciated in the
government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds are as follows:

General State Policy Other Authorized Agency Policies
Capitalization Estimated Useful Capitalization Estimated Useful
Asset Category Threshold Life(years) Threshold Life(years)

Land All capitalized Not depreciated All capitalized Not depreciated
Buildings All capitalized 25-40 $0-$100,000 10-50
Improvements other than buildings $5,000 15 - -
Equi pment $5,000 3-15 $0-$5,000 3-25
Infrastructure All capitalized Not depreciated $0-$100,000 10-100
Software $1,000,000 5-10 $1,000,000-$5,000,000 5-10
Other intangibles $100,000 Varied $100,000 Varied

Other intangibles include licenses and permits, patents, copyrights and trademarks, rights-of-way and easements, and natural
resource extraction rights. These are amortized over the shorter of the legal or estimated useful lifeif the useful lifeis definite or
limited. If thelifeisindefinite or unlimited, they are not amortized. In addition, rights-of-way and easements are amortized only
if the value is separable from the underlying land and natural resource extraction rights are not amortized unless the value of the
underlying asset isidentifiable.
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The State istrustee for approximately 9.3 million acres of land acquired through U.S. Government land grantsin the early 1900’s.
The State acquired a substantial portion of this land a no cost and its fair market value at acquisition has not been reliably
estimated. Accordingly, thisland is not reported in the accompanying financial statements.

The State has interest in and maintains significant special collections, works of art, and historical treasures. Except for ASU, all
special collections, works of art, and historical treasures which are held for financial gain are capitalized at fair market value at
the date of acquisition or donation. Those special collections, works of art, and higtorical treasures which are held for
educational, research, or public exhibition purposes are not capitalized, as they are not subject to disposal for financia gain or
encumbrance. Such items are inventoried for property control purposes. ASU capitalizes all works of art and historical treasures
with a unit cost of $5,000 or more.

Additiona disclosures related to capital assets and assets acquired through capital leases are provided in Notes 4 and 7,
respectively.

I.  INVESTMENT EARNINGS
Investment earnings are composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in fair value of applicable investments.
J. SCHOLARSHIP ALLOWANCES

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues earned by the three State Universities are reported net of scholarship
discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. A scholarship discount and
allowance is the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided and the amount that is paid by the student
or third party making payment on behalf of the student. Accordingly, some types of student financia aid such as Pell grants and
scholarships awarded by the Universities are considered to be scholarship allowances. These allowances are netted against
applicable revenues in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets.

K. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of payments to the State for goods and services not yet rendered, or taxes, grants, and other non-
exchange transactions for which related resources are not available to pay current liabilities. In the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when cash, receivables, or other assets are received prior to their being
earned. In the governmental fund financial statements, revenue is deferred when that revenue is unearned or unavailable.

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the State accrues liabilities for compensated absences as
required by the GASB. In the governmental fund financial statements, liabilities for compensated absences are not accrued,
because they are not considered due and payable.

In general, State employees accrue vested annual leave at a variable rate based on years of service. Except for uncovered State
employees and University employees, an employee generally forfeits accumulated annual leave in excess of 240 hours as of the
last day of the last pay period for a caendar year, unless the Director of the Department of Administration authorizes an
exception. Uncovered State employees shall forfeit accumulated annual leave in excess of 320 hours as of the end of each
calendar year, unless an exception is authorized. University employees may accumulate up to 264 hours of vacation, and any
vacation hoursin excess of the maximum amount that are unused at December 31 areforfeited. Except for University employees,
an employee who separates from State service is paid for all unused and unforfeited annual leave at the employee’ s rate of pay at
the time of separation. University employees, upon termination of employment, are paid all unused vacation benefits not
exceeding 176 hours (annual accrual amount), depending on years of service and full-time equivalent employment status.

Some employees accumul ate compensatory leave for time worked over 40 hours per week. An employee may accumulate up to
240 hours of compensatory leave (480 if working in a public safety activity or an emergency response activity). An employee
who separates from State service is paid for all unused compensatory leave at either the employee’ s average base salary during
the last three years of employment or final base salary, whichever ishigher.

For sick leave policy, see Note 12.C.
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M. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financia statements, long-term debt and long-term liabilities are reported as
liabilities. Amounts due within one year arereported as current liabilities, and amounts due thereafter are reported as non-current
liabilities. Premiums and discounts on revenue bonds and COPs are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt instrument
using the straight-line method or the effective interest method. Bonds and COPs are reported net of the applicable premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs and deferred gains or losses on debt refundings are charged to expense in the period incurred
unless those costs are deemed to be materia to the State’ s financial statements by management, in which case, they are deferred
and amortized using either the straight-line method or the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize proceeds from revenue bonds, COPs, other issuances, and
premiums and discounts on debt as other financing sources and uses in the current period. Long-term liabilities are more fully
described in Note 7.

N. NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES

The difference between fund assets and liahilities is “Net Assets’ on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
financial statements and “Fund Balance” on the governmental fund financial statements.

Net assets arereported in three categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or imposed by law through congtitutional provisions, voter initiatives, or court orders.

Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted
net assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in
those funds can be spent. Five classifications are available for reporting fund balances:

Nonspendable fund balance includes items that cannot be spent. This includes activity that is not in a spendable form
(inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or property held for resale unless the proceeds
arerestricted or committed) and activity that islegally or contractually required to remain intact, such as a principal balance
in a permanent fund.

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources that are either externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, and contributors, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions, voter initiatives, or court orders.

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal action of the
Arizona State Legidature, the State's highest level of decision-making authority. This formal action is the passage of law
by the Legidature, creating, modifying, or rescinding fund balance commitments.

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the State' s intent to be used for a specific purpose, but are
neither restricted nor committed. The State does not have policies or procedures comparable to the policies that underlie
this classification and, accordingly, does not report assigned fund balances.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the four categories described above.
Also, any deficit fund balances within the other governmental fund types are reported as unassigned.

When an expenditureisincurred for purposes for which restricted, committed, and unassigned fund balance is available, the State
considers restricted, committed, and unassigned amounts to have been spent in that order.
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Budget Stabilization Fund

The State’s Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF) was enacted in 1990 by ARS 835-144. The BSF is administered by the State
Treasurer, who is responsible for transferring General Fund money into and out of the BSF as required by law. The BSF is
designed to set revenue aside during times of above-trend economic growth and to utilize this revenue during times of below-
trend growth. The BSF is aso known asthe “Rainy Day Fund”.

There is a statutory formula to calcul ate the amount to be appropriated to (deposit) or transferred out (withdrawal) of the BSF.
The amount is based on calculations from the Arizona Economic Estimates Commission (EEC). The EEC compares the annual
growth rate of inflation adjusted Arizona personal income (AZP!) for the calendar year ending in the fiscal year to the trend
growth rate of inflation adjusted AZPI for the most recent 7 years. AZPI in the BSF formulais defined astotal AZPI less transfer
payments, adjusted by the gross domestic product price deflator index. If the annua growth rate exceeds the trend growth rate,
the “excess’ percent multiplied by General Fund revenue of the prior fiscal year would equal the amount to be deposited into the
BSF. If the annual growth rate of AZPI is both less than 2% and less than the trend growth rate, the deficiency when multiplied
by the General Fund revenue of the prior year would equal the amount to be withdrawn from the BSF. The BSF's total fund
balance cannot be larger than 7% of the current year’s General Fund revenues, excluding the beginning balance.

The budgets devel oped by the Governor and the Joint Legidative Budget Committee and submitted to the State Legislature at the
start of each regular session include estimates of the amount to be appropriated to or transferred from the BSF for the upcoming
budget year. The fina determination of the amount is done by the EEC on June 1 of the budget year. The EEC calculations,
however, do not result in any automatic deposits or withdrawals, as they must be authorized by legidative action. Additionaly,
by a two-thirds majority, the State Legidature, with the concurrence of the Governor, can decrease a deposit or increase a
withdrawal .

The BSF s fund balance as of June 30, 2012, was $250.1 million.
O. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS AND REPORTING ENTITY CHANGE

GASB Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. The objective of this
Statement is to address issues related to the use of the alternative measurement method and the frequency and timing of
measurements by employers that participate in agent multiple-employer other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans. The
provisions related to the use and reporting of the alternative measurement method are effective on issuance (December 2009).
The provisions related to the frequency and timing of measurements are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. The
State has implemented the requirements of this standard, but they had no effect on thefinancial satements.

GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions. The objective of this
Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap
counterparty’s credit support provider. This Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective hedging relationship
continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2011. As the State has aready implemented the requirements of this standard, there is no effect on the
financial statements.

The ACA was established through House Bill 2001, Fiftieth Legislature, Second Special Session (2011), to replace the now
sunset Arizona Department of Commerce (ADC) on July 1, 2011. The sunset ADC’ s assets were transferred to the ACA through
this legidative action. As discussed earlier in Note 1.A., the ACA isreported in the State€' s financial statements as a discretely
presented component unit based on criteria set forth in GASB 14.

|NOTE 2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT POLICIES

The Stat€'s deposits and investments are primarily under the control of the State Treasurer, the Retirement Systems, the
Universities, and the Industrial Commission (the Commission). These entities maintain the majority of the deposits and
investments of the primary government. The investment policies of these organizations are defined according to State statutes, or
agoverning board, or both, and are described bel ow.
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ARS 835-312, §35-313, and 835-314 authorize the State Treasurer to invest operating, trust, and permanent endowment fund
monies. Monies deposited with the State Treasurer by State agencies are invested by the State Treasurer in a pooled fund. Any
interest earned is allocated monthly into each respective fund based on average daily cash balances. There is no income from
investments associated with one fund that is assigned to another fund.

The State statutes and the State Treasurer’s investment policies designed to administer these statutes restrict investments to
obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations or other evidence of indebtedness of the State and certain local
government subdivisions, negotiable certificates of deposit, bonds, debentures and notes issued by U.S. corporations, commercia
paper issued by entities organized and doing business in the United States, bankers acceptances, collateralized repurchase
agreements, money market mutual funds, exchange traded funds, domestic equities, and other securities. The State Treasurer is
not allowed to invest in foreign investments.

The State Treasurer maintains external investment pools [the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), Local Government
Investment Pool - FF&C, Local Government Investment Pool — Medium Term, and Local Government Investment Pool —
Medium Term FF&C]. The pools are not required to register (and are not registered) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the 1940 Investment Advisors Act. The activity and performance of the pools are reviewed monthly by the
State Board of Investment in accordance with ARS §35-311.

In September 2008, the State agencies' and an external investment pool’s share of the Lehman Brothers bond value of $39.4
million was transferred to the Lehman Brothers Pool due to Lehman Brothers filing for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on
September 15, 2008. Thetransfer was made to provide for the declinein fair value of the Lehman Brothers securities.

In December 2011, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York entered an order confirming the
Modified Third Amended Lehman Brothers Joint Plan of Liquidation. In April 2012, approximately $2.4 million was received as
an initial payout of funds being held by the Indenture Trustee for Lehman Brothers securities. The payout received was all ocated
to participants based on the participant’s share balance and then transferred to the LGIP, reducing the carry or cost basis in the
Lehman Brothers Pool. As of June 30, 2012, the carry or cost basis and the fair value for the Lehman Brothers Pool were $37.0
million and $8.3 million, respectively. The next digtribution is expected to be on October 1, 2012, and generally, every six
months after that date. The remaining amount to be recovered is unknown.

The fair value of investments is measured on a monthly basis. Participant shares are purchased and sold based on the Net Asset
Value (NAV) of the shares. The NAV is determined by dividing the fair value of the portfolio by the total shares outstanding.
The State Treasurer does not contract with an outside insurer in order to guarantee the value of the portfolio or the price of shares
redeemed.

The Central Arizona Water Conservation District is an individual investment account.

The State Treasurer’s deposits and investments disclosures include the amounts reported by the State€'s component units as
(unrestricted/restricted) “Cash and pooled investments with State Treasurer” in the accompanying financial statements, as
applicable.

State statutes authorize the retirement systems to make investments in accordance with the “Prudent Person” rule. As such,
investment management shall discharge the duties of their position with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence, under the
circumgtances then prevailing, that a “prudent person” acting in enterprise of a like character and with like aims as that of the
system, subject to certain satutory limitations and restrictions.

The ASRS invests in short-term securities, obligations of the U.S. government or agencies of the U.S. government, corporate
bonds, common and preferred stocks (domestic and foreign), mortgages, derivatives, commodities, red estate, private equity, and
opportunistic investments. Per ARS §38-719, no more than 80% of the ASRS' total assets may be invested at any given timein
corporate stocks or equity equivalents, based on cost value of the stocks or equity equivalents irrespective of capital appreciation.
No more than 5% of the voting stock of any one corporation may be owned. No more than 30% of the ASRS' assets may be
invested in foreign securities, and those investments shall be made only by investment managers with demonstrated expertise in
such investments. No more than 10% of the ASRS' assets may be invested in bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of those
multinational devel opment banks in which the U.S. is a member nation, including the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, the African Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, and the Inter-American Development Bank. No
more than 1% of the ASRS' assets may be invested in economic devel opment projects authorized as eligible for such investment
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by the ACA. ARS 835-392 requires divestment from investments in companies that do business in Sudan, Iran, or other State
Sponsors of Terrorism countries under certain conditions. Subject to the limitations noted above, the ASRS Board may authorize
the ASRS Director to make investments that are designated by the ASRS Board and that do not exceed 50% of the assets of the
investment account measured at cost. The ASRS Board has not formally adopted more restrictive policies for the various types of
risks.

Per ARS §38-848D, §38-803A(4), and §38-883A(4), the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, respectively, may not invest at any
given time more than 80% of the combined assets of the system or other plans that the Board of Trustees manages in corporate
stocks, based on cost value of such stocks irrespective of capital appreciation. In addition, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP
investments shall be restricted to stocks and exchange traded funds that, except for bank and insurance stocks and membership
interestsin limited liability companies, are either: 1) listed or approved on issuance for listing on an exchange registered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 2) designated or approved on notice of issuance for designation on the nationa
market system of a national securities association registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 3) listed or
approved on issuance for liging on an exchange registered under the laws of this State or any other State, 4) listed or approved on
issuance for listing on an exchange registered of a foreign country with which the U.S. is maintaining diplomatic relations at the
time of purchase, except that no more than 20% of the combined assets of the system or other plans that the board manages shall
be invested in foreign securities, based on the cost value of the stocks irrespective of capital appreciation, or 5) an exchange
traded fund that is recommended by the chief investment officer of the system, that is registered under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, and that is both traded on a public exchange and based on a publicly recognized index. Not more than 5% of the
combined assets of the system or other plans that the board manages shall be invested in corporate stock issued by any one
corporation, other than corporate stock issued by corporations chartered by the U.S. government or corporate stock issued by a
bank or insurance company. Not more than 5% of the voting stock of any one corporation shal be owned by the system and
other plans that the board administers, except that this limitation does not apply to membership interests in limited liability
companies.

The ABOR governs the investment policies of the Universities. The Universities are generally limited to investing their pooled
operating funds in collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury securities, Federal agency
securities, investment grade corporate bonds, or in the LGIP administered by the State Treasurer. Investment of capital project
funds is also governed by the financing indenture agreements. For endowment investments, ABOR policy dictates that these
funds are to be invested under the direction of an investment committee designated by the president of each university. The
investment committee is responsible for advising on the definition, development, and implementation of investment objectives,
policies, and restrictions. However, if donors restrict the investments, ABOR policy requires the University to invest those funds
separately as directed by the donor, and the individual endowments bear al changesin value.

Per ARS §23-1065, the Commission’s investment committee is responsible for prescribing investment policies and supervising
the investment activities of the Commission. The Commission requires that their investment policy be responsive to the
unpredictable nature of the incidence and severity of claims, the long periods over which losses may be paid, and the effect on
both claims and losses of increases in treatment and rehabilitation costs. The investment committee may invest in any legal
investment authorized under ARS §38-719.

B. CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK —DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the deposits or
collateral securities may not be recovered from an outside party. The State Treasurer’s, the Retirement Systems’, and the
Universities deposits of State treasury monies with financial institutions are required by State statutes to be entirely covered by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or, alternatively, collateralized for amounts in excess of the amount
insured. Surety collateral for the Universities and the Retirement Systems must be equal to at least 100% of the bank balance
required to be collateralized (102% for the State Treasurer). Beyond this requirement, these organizations do not have a formal
policy specifically addressing custodial credit risk on deposits, except for the State Treasurer. The State statutes require surety
collateral for the State Treasurer to consist of either: 1) U.S. Government obligations, State obligations, or obligations of counties
or municipalities within the State, 2) State Treasurer’s warrant notes, or 3) the safekeeping receipt of the financial institution
accepting the deposit. As of June 30, 2012, the State had uncollateralized and uninsured deposits in the amount of $12.4 million
and $30.0 million in deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent,
but not in the State’ sname.
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Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the value of the
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party may not be recovered. The State does not have a
formal policy in regards to custodial credit risk for investments. As of June 30, 2012, the State had $141.9 million in securities
that were uninsured, not registered in the State's name, and held by either the counterparty or counterparty’s trust department or
agent, but not in the State’ s name.

C. INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest raterisk istherisk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The State manages
interest rate risk using the segmented time distribution, weighted average maturity, and effective duration methods.

The State Treasurer manages interest rate risk by incorporating ARS limitations into their investment policy and setting forth
various thresholds or parameters relating to interest rate risk in accordance with each investment pool’s portfolio structure. The
State Treasurer’s policy provides either maturity or duration limitations for the various investment pools. The interest rate risk
inherent in the portfolio is monitored monthly by measuring the weighted average maturity and/or duration.

The ASU’s policy for the operating funds limits the final maturity of any fixed-rate security or variable-rate security to five years
from the settlement date of the purchase. The capital projects funds portfolio is not limited as to the overall maturity of its
investments, with the funds invested per the financing indentures to coincide with capita spending needs and debt service
requirements, which are typically less than three years, with the additional limitation that certificates of deposit and commercia
paper have maximum maturities of 360 days and 270 days, respectively.

The Commission approves and contracts with different investment managers of fixed income securities in order to manage the
exposure to interest rate risk with each different manager focusing on different goals of yield periods or duration of maturities of
their particular portion of the investment poal.

The following table presents the State Treasurer’s, the ASU'’s, and the Commission’s weighted average maturity in years by
investment type as of June 30, 2012 (expressed in thousands):

Weighted Average

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity (in years)
Asset backed securities $ 314,449 1.69
Certificates of deposit (negotiable) 118,078 0.19
Commercial mortgage backed securities 64,787 20.79
Commercial paper 739,686 0.08
Corporate notes & bonds 1,604,515 4.13
FDIC certificates of deposit 80,384 0.39
Government bonds 46,105 7.37
Government mortgage backed securities 18,750 22.58
Money market mutua funds 442 014 0.06
Non-government backed collateralized mortgage

obligations (CMOs) 4,3% 20.78
Repurchase agreements 2,712,316 0.01
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities 1,132,184 20.11
U.S. agency mortgage backed securities— full faith 661,170 22.82
U.S. agency securities 1,428,471 2.66
U.S. agency securities— full faith 41,708 264
U.S. Treasury securities 1,163,289 1.97
Other 7,261 554

Total $ 10,579,561 5.07

The ASRS has not adopted a specific formal policy for interest rate risk, but does set more restrictive requirementsin its contracts
with money managers. The ASRS uses effective duration to identify and manage its interest rate risk. Effective duration
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measures the expected change in value of a fixed income security for a given change in interest rate. This method takes into
account the likely timing and amounts of variable cash flows for bonds with call options and prepayment provisions. The

following table presents ASRS' effective duration by investment type as of June 30, 2012 (expressed in thousands):

Effective

Duration

Investment Type Fair Value (in years)
Asset backed securities $ 204,094 2.30
Commercial mortgage backed securities 232,768 2.90
Corporate bonds 1,758,232 4.90
Government agency CMOs 46,306 2.40
Government bonds 1,246,563 8.10
Government mortgage backed securities 1,345,250 2.00
Government related bonds 509,250 7.20
Non-government backed CMOs 33,325 7.20
Total $ 5,375,788 4.94

The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP do not have a formal policy in regards to interest raterisk. The NAU'sand theU of A’s
investment policies for their operating funds limit the maximum maturity of any fixed-rate or variable-rate security to five years
from the settlement date of purchase. The NAU's and the U of A’s endowment funds have no such limitation. The following
table presents the interest rate risk for the PSPRS, the EORP, the CORP, the NAU, the U of A, and other State agencies utilizing
the segmented time distribution as of June 30, 2012 (expressed in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Lessthanl 1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 More than 20
Certificates of deposit (negotiable) $ 23326 $ 10,794 $ 12283 $ 249 % - 3 - $ -
Collateralized bond obligations

(CBOs) 23,242 - - 12,335 - - 10,907
Corporate notes & bonds 912,987 40,649 98,755 44,096 7,748 5,930 715,809
Government bonds 3,954 510 3,444 - - - -
Money market mutua funds 140,487 140,487 - - - - -
Mortgages 11,110 - - - 352 3,606 7,152
U.S. agency securities 267,822 99,368 124,346 - - 22,937 21,171
U.S. Treasury securities 11,090 - 11,090 - - - -
Other 14,573 4,103 1,297 9,078 95 - -

Totd $1408591 $ 295911 $ 251215 $ 65,758 $ 8195 $ 32473 $ 755,039
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The following table presents the State' s investments at fair value that are considered to be highly sensitive to interest rate changes
as of June 30, 2012 (expressed in thousands):

Corporate
Notes & U.S. Agency
Interest Rate Terms Securities Securities Other Total

Investments with coupon tied to the London Interbank Offered Rate

(LIBOR) plug/minus a fixed basis point which resets from monthly to

quarterly. $ 306500 $ - $ - $ 306,500
Asset back securities (including full faith) with coupon tied to the LIBOR

plus/minus a fixed basis point which resets from monthly to quarterly. 143,847 43,340 - 187,187
Investments with coupon tied to the LIBOR plug/minus a fixed basis point

which resets from monthly to quarterly. 93,372 37,790 98,095 229,257

Mortgage backed securities (including full faith) - when interest rates fal,

mortgages are refinanced and paid off early and the reduced stream of

future interest payments diminishes fair value. 56,346 1,812,104 - 1,868,450
Investments - where on certain specified dates, the issuer can call the

investment. If the investment isnot called, theinterest rate isincreased by

aspecified amount. Prevailing interest rates may go up faster than the

increases in the coupon interest rate. - 116,954 - 116,954
Other investments with high sensitivity to rate changes. - 247,717 - 247,717
Total $ 600065 $ 2257905 $ 98,095 $2956,065

D. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of the
investment.

State statutes and the State Treasurer’ s investment policy require that commercial paper must be rated by at least two nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs) and that the ratings assigned by at least two of the NRSROs be of the two
highest rating categories for short-term obligations. Corporate bonds, debentures, notes, and negotiable certificates of deposit
must carry a minimum Baa or better rating from Moody’s Investor Service (Moody's) or a BBB or better rating from Standard
and Poor’s Rating Service (S & P) or their successors. For securities of or any other interests in any open-end management type
investment company or investment trust including exchange traded funds, the underlying investments must be securities which
are allowable under State statutes. For investments not rated by Moody's, Fitch rating information is used. Thereisno statute or
investment policy on ratings or credit quality for obligations issued by the U.S. Government or its agencies or repurchase
agreements. The underlying securities for repurchase agreements are assumed to be implicitly guaranteed by the U.S.
Government, as some are collateralized with U.S. agency securities.

The ASRS has not adopted a formal policy with respect to credit risk.

The PSPRS', the EORFP's, and the CORP's investment policies are specific as to permissible credit quality ranges, exposure
levels within individual quality tiers, and the average credit quality of the overall portfolios. The fixed income portfolio must
have a minimum weighted average quality rating of A3 by Moody’s and A- by S & P. Fixed income securities must have a
minimum quality rating of Baa3 by Moody's and BBB- by S & P at the time of purchase. The portion of the bond portfolio in
securities rated Baa3 through Baal by Moody’s and BBB- through BBB+ by S & P must be 20% or less of the fair value of the
fixed income portfolio. Commercial paper must have a minimum quality rating of P-1 by Moody’sand A1 by S & P at the time
of purchase.

The Universities policies mirror that of the ABOR, which requires that negotiable certificates of deposit, corporate bonds,
debentures and notes, bankers acceptances, and State of Arizona bonds carry a minimum BBB or better rating by S & P or Baaor
better rating by Moody’s; and that commercial paper be rated by at least two NRSROs and be of the two highest rating categories
for short-term obligations of at least two of the NRSROs. In addition, the Universities do not have formal policies that
specifically address credit risk over endowment funds. The Universities endowment funds are primarily invested in their
Foundations' endowment pools, which are not rated. The Foundations investment committees manage the credit risk of the
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pools investments. Also, the ASU’s capital projects and bond debt service funds are invested by the bond trustee in accordance
with the applicable financing indenture.

The Commission’s investment policy requires that purchases of fixed income securities will consist of U.S. Treasury or Federal
agency obligations or those bonds rated not less than Baa3 by Moody’s or BBB- by S & P, except for fixed income managers
who have been hired to manage funds in a specialized manner (high yield).

The following table presents the State' s investments which wererated by S & P and/or an equivalent national rating organization
as of June 30, 2012. Theratings are presented using S & P’ srating scale (expressed in thousands):

CCC Not
Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA A BBB BB B ThruD A-1 Rated

Asset backed securities $ 475203 $ 292,145 $ 30,243 $ 2369 $45211 $ 37,717 $ 8,082 $ 27,411  $ 3919 $ 6,780
CBOs 23,242 - - 10,907 - - - 12,335 - -
Certificates of deposit

(negotiable) 141,404 - 73,100 - - - - - 44,978 23,326
Commercial mortgage

backed securities 296,804 256,031 11,980 15,345 10,775 2,350 - - - 323
Commercial paper 739,686 - - - - - - - 739,686 -
Corporate notes &

bonds 3,916,905 120,478 414,747 1,258,004 588,771 274,864 411,840 125,171 - 723,030
Government agency

CMOs 46,306 - 45,993 - - - - - - 313
Government bonds 843,951 15,236 814,181 1,859 12,675 - - - - -
Government mortgage

backed securities 1,345,932 - 1,345,250 - - - - - - 682
Government related

bonds 509,250 37,736 423,048 45,935 462 - - - - 2,069
Money market

mutual funds 582,501 521,132 51,013 - - - - - - 10,356
Mortgages 11,110 - - - 352 - - 10,758 - -
Non-government

backed CMOs 37,719 7,627 3,581 4,497 376 - 281 12,068 - 9,289
Repurchase agreements 1,182,316 - 1,182,316 - - - - - - -
U.S. agency mortgage

backed securities 1,132,184 - 1,132,184 - - - - - - -
U.S. agency securities 1,651,887 2501 1,564,960 56,680 - - - - 27,738 8
Other 85,359 - 5,012 - - - - - - 80,347

Total $13,021,759 $1,252,886 $7,097,608 $1,416,922 $658,622 $314,931 $420,203 $187,743  $816,321  $856,523

E. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentration of credit risk is therisk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer. The
State Treasurer’s, the ASRS, the Universities', and the Commission’s investment policies provide that no more than 5% of their
investments shall be invested in securities issued by a single corporation and its subsidiaries/affiliates, however, securities issued
by the federal government or its agencies, sponsored agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations or instrumentalities are
exempt. The State Treasurer also exempts from this policy the purchase of Treasurer Warrant Notes for the State Agencies
Diversified pool, provided the maximum amount of the notes purchased shall not exceed 50% of the market value of the poal.
The PSPRS', the EORP's, and the CORP's investment policies state that no more than 5% of the Fund or its fixed income
portfolio at fair value shal be invested in bonds issued by any one institution, agency, or corporation other than bonds used as
direct obligations of and fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government. At June 30, 2012, investments in any one issuer, that were
more than 5% of the primary government’s total investments, are as follows: (i) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (fair
value of $923.7 million, or 9.5%) and (ii) Federal National Mortgage Association (fair value of $982.4 million, or 10.1%).

F. FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk istherisk that changes in the foreign exchange rate will adversely impact the fair value of an investment or
deposit. The State does not have a formal policy regarding foreign currency risk. The ASRS, the PSPRS, the EORP, and the
CORP are the primary State agencies that have foreign currency risk. Per ARS 838-719, no more than 30% of the ASRS' assets
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may beinvested in foreign equity securities and those investments shall be made only by investment managers with demonstrated
expertise in those investments. The ASRS has not adopted a formal policy that is more restrictive. According to State statutes,
the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP shall not invest more than 20% of the combined assets of the system or other plansthat the
Board of Trustees manages in foreign securities. The following table summarizes the State’ s foreign currency risk as of June 30,
2012 (expressed in thousands):

Foreign Currency Risk by Investment Type at Fair Value

Other

Currency Short Term Fixed Income Equities Investments Total
Australian Dollar $ 319 $ - $ 96,674 $ - $ 96,993
Brazilian Rea - - 3,064 - 3,064
British Pound Sterling 1,263 5,109 443,619 29,910 479,901
Canadian Dollar (57) 4,809 101,060 - 105,812
Danish Krone 127 - 21,066 - 21,193
Euro Currency 14,386 79,883 465,661 250,118 810,048
Hong Kong Dallar 366 - 60,959 - 61,325
Isragli Sheke 16 - 3,744 - 3,760
Japanese Yen 3,694 - 366,987 - 370,681
New Taiwan Dollar 1 - 14,832 - 14,833
New Zealand Dollar 28 - 1,303 - 1,331
Norwegian Krone 37 - 10,990 - 11,027
Singapore Dallar 18 - 49,525 - 49,543
South Korean Won - - 21,772 - 21,772
Swedish Krona 41 - 52,581 - 52,622
Swiss Franc 1,386 - 200,172 - 201,558

Total $ 21,625 $ 89,801 $ 1,914,009 $ 280,028 $ 2,305,463

G. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

Pursuant to Section 904 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §1104), unemployment insurance contributions from Arizona
employers are deposited in an unemployment trust fund account with the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States. The cash
on deposit in the trust fund account is pooled and invested. Interest earned from investments purchased with such pooled monies
is deposited in the trust fund account. The Unemployment Compensation Fund, reported as a major enterprise fund, has been
established for this purpose.

H. SECURITIES LENDING

Cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions and investments made with that cash are reported as assets. A
corresponding liability is also recorded for such securities lending transactions.

1. Industrial Commission

State statutes and the Commission’s policies permit the Commission to enter into securities lending transactions with its custodial
bank. Therewere no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions, and there were no borrower or lending agent default
losses to the securities lending agent. The custodial bank, The Northern Trust Company, manages the securities lending
operations through a contractual agreement with the Commission and splits the fees received with the Commission. There was no
credit risk (i.e., lender’s exposure to the borrowers of its securities) related to the securities lending transactions at June 30, 2012.
The Northern Trug Company's indemnification responshilities include performing appropriate borrower and collateral
investment credit analysis, demanding adequate types and levels of collateral, and complying with applicable Department of
Labor and Federal Financial Ingtitutions Examinations Council regulations concerning securities lending. Securities are loaned
for collatera that may include cash, U.S. Government securities, and irrevocable letters of credit. Domestic securities are loaned
for collateral valued at 102% of the market value of securities|oaned plus accrued interest. International securities are loaned for
collateral valued at 105% of the market value of securities loaned plus accrued interest. The market value at June 30, 2012 for
loaned securities collateralized by cash and non-cash collateral was $43.8 million and $20 thousand, respectively. As part of the
securities lending transactions, The Northern Trust Company received cash and non-cash collateral valued at $44.3 million and
$0, respectively, at June 30, 2012. Non-cash collateral cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaullts.
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All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower. The average term of the loans is 63 days
and cash open collatera is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core USA Collateral Section, which had an interest
sensitivity of 39 days as of June 30, 2012. Cash collatera may also be invested separately in term loans, in which case the
investments match the loan term. Cash open loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender or the borrower and there
were no dividends or coupon payments owing on securities lent. Securities lending earnings are credited to participating clients
on approximately the fifteenth day of the following month. Investments made with cash collateral received are classified as an
asset on the Statement of Net Assets. A corresponding liahility is recorded as the Commission must return the cash collatera to
the borrower upon expiration of the loan. At June 30, 2012, the Commission had $44.3 million outstanding as payable for
securities lending. A maximum restriction on the amount of securities that can be lent out at any one time of $43.976 million was
set by the Commission on September 29, 2008.

2. Arizona State Retirement System

The ASRS is permitted by ARS §38-715(D)(3), to enter into securities lending transactions. The ASRS' custodial bank enters
into agreements with counterparts to loan securities and have the same securities redelivered at a later date. All securities are
eligible for loan (U.S. fixed income securities, U.S. equities, and international equities) with a higher percentage of U.S.
Treasuries on loan than most other security types. The ASRS currently receives as collatera at least 102% of the market val ue of
the loaned securities and maintains collateral at no less than 100% for the duration of the loan. At year-end, the ASRS had no
counter party risk to borrowers because the amount the ASRS owes the borrowers exceeds the amount the borrowers owe the
ASRS. Securities loaned areinitially fully collateralized by cash (USD and Euro), irrevocable letters of credit, U.S. Government
or agency securities, sovereign debt, corporate bonds and equities. Cash collateral may be reinvested (under certain constraints)
in: @) ingruments issued or fully guaranteed by the U.S. Government, Federal agencies, or sponsored agencies or sponsored
corporations, b) instruments issued by domestic corporations including corporate notes and floating rate notes, c) obligations of
approved domestic and foreign banks, d) U.S. dollar-denominated instruments issued by sovereigns, sovereign supported credits,
and instruments of foreign banks and corporations, €) repurchase agreements, f) insurance company funding agreements,
guaranteed investment contracts and bank investment contracts, and g) money market mutual funds. The ASRS records the
collateral received as an asset and the same amount as an obligation for securities on loan. The maturities of the investments are
closely matched to those of the security loans to avoid interest rate exposure. The ASRS receives a spread for its lending
activities. Investments made with cash collateral are classified as an asset on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. A
corresponding liability is recorded as the ASRS must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon expiration of the loan. At
June 30, 2012, the fair value of securities on loan was $49.4 million; all of which were cash collateralized loans. Cash of $50.1
million received as collateral for securities loaned was reinvested and had a net asset value of $49.7 million, as of June 30, 2012.
The securities lending payable at June 30, 2012 was $50.1 million. The ASRS does not have the ability to pledge or sell the
collateral unlessthere is a borrower default. There are no restrictions on the dollar amount of security loans that may be made by
the ASRS. The ASRS isindemnified againg gross negligence and borrower default by the lending agents but is not indemnified
againgt cash collateral reinvestment risk.

During the late summer and early fall of 2011, ongoing monitoring of ASRS securities lending exposure showed growing risks
throughout Europe and in the European banking sector. In an effort to reduce the securities lending investment pools exposure to
the European banking sector, the ASRS substantially withdrew from securities lending in 2011. Asaresult, the market values of
securities on loan decreased from $3.5 hillion as of June 30, 2011 to $49.4 million at June 30, 2012.

3. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System, Elected Officials ”Retirement Plan, and Corrections Officer Retirement
Plan

The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are permitted by ARS Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 4, 3, and 6, respectively, to enter into
securities lending transactions. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are parties to securities lending agreements with a bank.
The bank, on behalf of the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP, entersinto agreements with brokersto loan securities and have the
same securities returned at a later date. The loans are fully collateralized, primarily by cash. Collateral is marked-to-market on a
daily basis. Non-cash collateral can be sold only upon borrower default. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP require collateral
of at least 102% of the fair value of the loaned U.S. Government or corporate security. Securities on loan are carried at fair value.
As of June 30, 2012, the fair values of securities on loan for the PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP were $98.2 million, $5.7
million, and $25.0 million, respectively. At June 30, 2012, the fair value of the associated collatera for the PSPRS, the EORP,
and the CORP were $102.1 million, $6.0 million, and $26.0 million, respectively. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP are
indemnified for broker default by the securities lending agent. The PSPRS, the EORP, and the CORP have no credit risk because
the amounts owed to the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe to the retirement system or plan.
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4, State Treasurer

The State Treasurer is permitted under ARS 8835-313 and 35-324 to enter into securities lending transactions. The State
Treasurer’s custodial bank manages the securities lending program through a contractual agreement. At fiscal year-end, the State
Treasurer had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amount the State Treasurer owes to the borrowers exceeds the
amount the borrowers owe the State Treasurer. All securities are eligible for loan, but equities and U.S. Treasuries comprise a
majority of securities that are on loan. There are no restrictions on the dollar amount of security loans that may be made by the
State Treasurer. Securities are loaned for collateral that may include cash, U.S. government securities, state and local bonds,
other municipalities bonds and notes, commercial paper, banker acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit, and corporate
bonds, notes, and debentures. Securities are loaned for collateral valued at 102% of the market value of the securities loaned at
the close of trading on the preceding business day, except for securities asset types such as U.S. Treasury strips and hills where
the market fluctuations do not allow for the sale of such a security at greater than par. For these exceptions, collateral valued at
the lesser of 100% of the par value of the security loaned or 102% of the market value is acceptable. Investments made with cash
collateral are done on an individual investment pool basis and are restricted to the limitations for that investment pool set forth in
the State Treasurer’ s investment policy, except for investments made for certain endowment equity pools. Permitted investments
for these equity pools include those investments authorized in section 1V of the State Treasurer’s investment policy. Cash
collateral investments include: @) obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of its agencies, sponsored
agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or insrumentalities including repurchase and tri-party repurchase agreements
collateralized at no less than 102% by securities, 100% by cash, and 102% by mortgage-backed securities, b) bonds or other
evidences of indebtedness of this state or any of the counties or incorporated cities, towns, or duly organized school districts, c)
bonds and notes of other municipalities including repurchase and tri-party repurchase agreements collateralized at no less than
105% by securities and 100% by cash, d) commercial paper, €) bill of exchange or time drafts known as bankers acceptances, f)
negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or state chartered bank or savings and loan, g) bonds, debentures, and
notes issued by corporations organized and doing business in the United States, and h) U.S. 2a-7 money market mutual funds
which areregulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and rated in the highest category by at |east one NRSRO.

The State Treasurer records the cash collateral received as an asset and the same amount as obligations under securities loan
agreements. As of June 30, 2012, the fair value of securities on loan was $1.1 billion. The associated fair value of the invested
collateral was $1.1 hillion, of which $581.4 million was invested cash collateral. All securities loans can be terminated on
demand by either the State Treasurer or the borrower. For the cash collateral investments, the weighted average maturity was six
days. The State Treasurer does not have the ability to pledge or sell the non-cash collateral unless there is a borrower default.
The State Treasurer isindemnified againg gross negligence, bad faith, or willful misconduct and borrower default by the lending
agent. There were no borrower defaults during the current fiscal year. At June 30, 2012, the State Treasurer had $581.4 million
outstanding as payable for securities lending, and the following securities on loan were uninsured and held by the bank trust
department not in the Treasurer’ s name:

U.S. agency securities $ 5,059,585
U.S. Treasury securities 519,071,988
Equities S& P 600 26,150

Total Fair Value $ 524,157,723
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I. DERIVATIVES
A derivative instrument is afinancial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characterigtics:

i Settlement factors: It has one or more reference rates and one or more notional amounts or payment provisions or both.
Those terms determine the amount of the settlement or settlements, and in some cases, whether or not a settlement is
required.

i Leverage: It requires no initid net investment or an initia net investment that is smaller than would be required for other
types of contracts that would be expected to have a Smilar response to changes in market factors.

i Net Settlement: Its terms require or permit net settlement, it can readily be settled net by means outside the contract, or it
provides for delivery of an asset that puts the recipient in a position not substantially different from net settlement.

The ASRS is the primary State agency that has investment derivatives. The ASRS's derivatives are considered “Investment
Derivative Instruments’ as defined in GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments.
All funds are considered fiduciary funds.

The ASRS's derivative instruments, which consist of futures contracts, forward contracts, options, swaps, rights, and warrants,
are measured at fair value and reported on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. Changes in fair values of derivative
instruments are reported as net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments on the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2012, classified by type, and the

changes in fair value of derivative ingruments for the year then ended as reported in the June 30, 2012 financia statements are as
follows (expressed in thousands):
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Investment Derivatives by Type

Changes in Fair Value (1)

Fair Value at June 30, 2012

Investment Derivatives Classification Amount (2) Classification Amount (3) Notional (4)

Net increase (decrease) in fair

Commaodity futureslong value of investments $ (67,680) Not applicable $ - $ 212,032
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Commodity futures short value of investments 3,925 Not applicable - (24)
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Credit default swaps bought value of investments 473  Equity securities 1,534 47,716
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Credit default swaps written value of investments 54  Equity securities 161 29,025
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Fixed income futureslong value of investments 88,416 Not applicable - 213
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Fixed income futures short value of investments (21,366) Not applicable - -
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Fixed income options bought value of investments 97 Equity securities 472 19,400
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Fixed income options written value of investments 1,095 Equity securities (1,581) (182,000)
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Foreign currency futureslong value of investments (6,595) Not applicable - 255,730
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Foreign currency futures short value of investments 14,973 Not applicable - -
Foreign currency options Net increase (decrease) in fair

bought value of investments (71) Equity securities 321 23,858
Foreign currency options Net increase (decrease) in fair

written value of investments (20) Not applicable - -
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Futures options written value of investments 74  Not applicable - -

Net increase (decrease) in fair Forward contracts

Foreign currency forwards value of investments (6,328)  receivable 542 244,457
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Index futures long value of investments (90,881) Not applicable - 13,506
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Index futures short value of investments 1,606 Not applicable - -
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Pay fixed interest rate swaps value of investments (7,265) Equity securities (1,827) 40,500
Receive fixed interest rate Net increase (decrease) in fair

swaps value of investments 1,906 Equity securities 1,654 73,144
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Rights value of investments 99 Equity securities 192 727
Net increase (decrease) in fair

Warrants value of investments 118 Equity securities 27 275

Total $ (87,370) $ 1495 $ 778,559

(1) Excludes futures margin payments.
(2) Negative values (in brackets) refer to losses.
(3) Negative valuesrefer to liahilities.
(4) Notional may be a dollar amount or size of underlying futures and options; negative values refer to short positions.

The fair value of derivative instruments reported by the ASRS is based on quoted market prices off national exchanges. The fair
value of foreign currency forward contracts is based on mathematical models and is valued using a pricing service, which uses
published Reuter’ s foreign currency rates as the primary source for the calculation.
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The credit quality ratings of counterparties as described by NRSROs and the counterparties’ related risk concentration, as of June
30, 2012, are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Counterparty Risk and Ratings

Total Risk Ratings

Counterparty Name Net Exposure  Concentration  S&P Fitch Moody's
Australiaand New Zead and Banking Group $ 25 0.50% AA- AA- Aa2
Barclay's Bank, PLC Wholesdle 722 14.36% A+ A A2
Barclay’s Capita 17 0.34% A+ A A2
BNP Paribas, S.A. 12 0.24% AA- A+ A2
Citibank N.A. 409 8.13% A A A3
Citigroup Globa Markets, CME 138 2.74% A- A Baa2
Credit Suisse FOB CME 124 2.47% A+ A Al
Credit Suisse London Branch 1 0.02% A+ A Al
Deutsche Bank London 854 16.98% A+ A+ A2
Goldman Sachs Capitd Markets, L.P. 4 0.08% A- A A3
HSBC Bank USA 1,399 27.82% AA- AA Al
JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. 522 10.38% A+ AA- Aa3
Royal Bank of Canada 7 0.14% AA- AA Aa3
Royal Bank of Scotland, PLC 20 0.40% A A A3
Standard Chartered Bank 210 4.18% AA- AA- Al
State Street Bank and Trust Co. 77 1.53% AA- A+ Aa2
USB AG 475 9.45% A A A2
Westpac Banking Corporation 12 0.24% AA- AA- Aa2

Total $ 5,028 100.00%

The maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that the ASRS would incur if the counterparties to the derivative instrument failed
to perform according to the terms of the contract, without respect to any collateral or other security or netting arrangement, isthe
total unrealized gain of derivatives at the end of the reporting period.

The ASRS has no general investment policy requiring collateral or other security to support derivative ingruments. Each
investment manager hired has discretion with respect to derivative investments and risk control. Each investment manager is
governed by its Investment Manager Agreement.

The ASRS has no general investment policy with respect to netting arrangements. The ASRS' s investment managers have master
netting arrangements to allow net settlement with the same counterparty in the event the counterparty defaults on its obligations.

The ASRS s derivatives do not have contingent features.

The aggregate fair value of investment derivative instruments in asset positions at June 30, 2012 was $5.0 million. This
represents the maximum amount of lossin case of default of all counterparties for the aggregated (positive) fair value of over-the-
counter positions as of June 30, 2012. There was no collatera received or netting arrangements in place at June 30, 2012 with
counterparties that would reduce this exposure.

The ASRS has exposure to interest rate risk due to the investment in an interest rate swap agreement. The required risk
disclosures areincluded in the Interest Rate Risk schedu